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I : - INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Brooke Corporation:

We have audited the acccmpanying consolidated balance sheets of
" BROOKE CORPORATION

las of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and
cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
lresponsxblhty is to express an oplmon on these ﬁnanc:al staternents based on our audits. ’ i

We conductad our audm in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepied in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the aud.lt to-obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
Istatements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the acceunting principles used and significant |
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall ﬁnanclal statement presentanon We believe that our audlts
Iprowde a rca.aonable basis for our opinion. .

In our oplmon the financial statements referred to above preseut fairly, in all material respects the ﬁnanclal posmou
of BROOKE CORPORATION as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years. then ended in conformn:y with accouutm principles ﬂencrally accepted in the United States of America.

lSummers, Spenccr-& Callison, CPAs, Chartered
Topeka, Kansas . )
IFcbmcry 21,2003 -
' - F-2
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Brooke Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets

l B _ ' DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2007

" ASSETS
2002 2001
Current Assets ) . ) )
Cash : S 5 7210318 3 4,787,869
Accounts and notes receivable, net ) 9,236,345 7,810,688
‘Note receivable, parent company : : . © 608,189 437,668
Other receivables R 2220619 - 879,072
Securities L - } . - 1,198 © 1,198
Inte.rest-on]y strip recexvable IR : 1,883,276 184,412
Depogits S _ ' .. 38141 -
Prepald expenses : ) : o . o o 503,899 328,912
Total Current dssets . - - | 8 C 2172185 . 14429819
Investment in Agenc:es .. . . Co ; - 402703 - 867,320
l Property and Equ:pment . : ) - : .
Cost - Ce L : 4173940 - 2,402,101
Less Accumulated deprecmtmn S -t ' (1,854,952_) (1,752,325)
I. -NetProperUJ anquur;ument L . i Sl . - . 2318988 649,776
Other Assets : ' : - . o _ i
l Excess of cost over fair value ofnet assets Lo R C . 2,309,627 852,848 -
Less: Accumulated amortization™ - . R (405,749) (255,469)
. Prepaid- com.tmssmn cruarantec s o o . L = 28200
Goodwill- . SR . - _ == . 1,284
' Prepald finders fee s . - ) . 13,832 . 14,340
Contract database : ] o R . .. .. 68,835 739,692
Servicing asset - . . 3 o ST T 1238984 . 293276
" Agency assets LT o : .. . . 317,126 S =
- Restricted cash S S, .. ..208,498 —
Defered taxasset -~ " " 0 Lo 50637 906,543
I Net Other dssets - - . R ST LT 3p108i0 1920714
Total Assets L | . .5 2835468 § 17,867,629".

lee acz;équarglmg summary of accounting policies and notes to financial statements.
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Brooke Corporation
-Consolidated Balance Sheets

DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 200]

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Premiums payable to insurance companies
Unearned buyer assistance plan fees
Accrued commission reﬁmds
Short term debt - '
Current matuntles of long-term debt

Toral Current anb :[ ities

Non-current Liabilities .
Servicing liability
Long-term debt less current maturities .

Total Lmblhtles .

Stackholders Eqmty ' '

.. Common stock, §1 par value 9 500 000 shares authorized, 774, 973 and 704 018 shares

issued and 763,923 and 692, 968 shares outstanding .

" Preferred stock, $75 par value, 1,000 shares authonzed 781 shares msucd and
. outstanding

Preferred stock, - $25 par value 464 625 shares authonzed 49 667 and 43, 137 shares -

issued and outstanding

‘Preferred Stock, $32 par value, 34 375 shares authonzed, 24, 331 sha.res wsued and

outstanding

- Less: Treasury stack, 11,050 shares at cost
Notes receivable for common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings (deficit) - :

) Accumu!ated other cornprehens:ve income

Total Stackhalder.s‘ Equny
Total Lmb!htxes and Stoclcholders Equ:ty

See ar:campanymg summary of accountmg paIzcze.s' and notes to financial statements.
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

2001

L2002

5,181,974 § 2,299,366
4,415,188 2,256,732
1,666,417 928,232
- 327,405 - 296,842
" 991,646 695,515 -
2,272,150 3,470,608
14,854,789 © 9,947,295
. 53292 42,260
10 405,933 7,398,935
2:,314,014 17,388,490
774973 704018
58,600 58,600
1,241,675 . 1,841,250
o oTesr —.
209, 500) (39,500)
— -(8,193)

1 875,333 703,023
(1 868,981)  (2,787.370)
219,980 7311
3,040,672 479,139

3 28,354,686

$ 17,867,629




’

I Brooke Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Income
I YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001
2007 2001
Operatmg Income
I Insurance commissions $ 30,539,743 '$§ 20,895.232
Interest income (net) 736,713 418,266
Facilitator income 1,589,234 450,000
Gain on sale of agencies 163,226 676,503
Buyer assistance plan fees 3,954 4244 1,589,550
Gain on sale of notes receivable 2,762,673 507,670
Gain on extinguishment of debt 438,706 —
I Lass on sale of fixed assets L - (47,397)
Policy fee income 173,717 .-
Other income © 35,795 4,333
l Total Operating Income E 40,395,273 24,494,157
Operating Expenses . _ S
I Commissions expense - 25335297 16,220,082
Payroll expense - 7,014,533 4,112,648
Depreciation and amoruzatlon 309210 440,614
‘Qther operating expenses - 4,270,578 1,991,054
I Boncl_ interest expense 496,657 343,672
Total Opemﬁﬁg Expei;ues , . - 37,946,275 .23,108,070_'
I Impmrment loss — 162,877 -
Income from Operatinn; ' L 2,443,998 . - 1,223,210 .
¥ Other Expenses . S
" Interest expense 252217 -169,561
Total Other Expenses L 25217 169,561
I.Im;qme Before Income Taxes C2,196781 1,053,649
. Income tax expense . - 746906 358241
I'N'Et Iucome $ 1440875 $ 695408
;. Net Income per Share .
. - Basic I - 91
I _ Diluted 1.36 90

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to financial statements.




Brooke Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001

Notes . Accom Other
Common Preferred Treasury Receivable for  Add'l Paid- . Retained Comprehensive
Stock Stock Stock Common Stock  _ In Capital Earnings Tncome Totod
Balances, December 31, 1000 H 704,018 § 58600 S (19500) § — § 1,103,702 § (2452,773) § -5 L (625,953
" Adjustment 10 record  producer . ’ L )

payebls b - - - - {7197.217} —_ (191277
Adjusted Balances, Decr.mb:r 1, ) . -

2000 704,018 - -58,600 (39.500) - . — 1,103,702 " (3,250,050} — (1,423,230
Dividends paid . : {232,728) {232,728
Preferred stock issued 1,841.250 ’ . 1,341,250
Fair market’ value of contributed : !

services A 40,000 40,000
Laans for cammon stock issuances c o . ’ (3.193) (3,193
Deferred charges . Co T {440,879} . (440,679
Comprehensive income:

Interest-only strip reunmblc. Fa:r o

market valuo : - EIRE 7311 131
Net incoma i . " 695,408 o 695408
Balances, pecalibﬂ'}l', 2001 5 704,018 § 1809850 .5 35,500y § (8,193 § 703.021 H !.f.‘?'BT.BTU] 3 m H 479.139
Balances, Decernber 31, 2001 H 704018 3 18993850 $§ (39500) § {8,193) § 703,023 § (2,787,370) § . 1311 8§ 479,139
Dividends paid ) . - o ) . . - {531,486) . - {531,486
Prefemred stock lssaed : To- . 2001646 : ' ) . 2,001,646
Fair morket value of contributed - L

services : _ CoL 30,000 30,000

Equity conversion 70,155 {1,822,629) . - . 175244 R
.Equity issuance - ’ - 800 ’ o 19200 ’ 20,000
Losn proczeds for commaon stock . : o L . k , L

issusnces | - . ! ’ . §193 : - B 193
Deferred chargza . : L. Lo B (629 ,364) (529.364
Comprehenive ricome: S A S : . : .

Interest-only strip ru:cwnh!:. fair L L. . . : K

market value . K . o ) ' * 212,669 . - 212,569
Net incoms, i K L . R T L449.875 R T 1,449,875
Balances, Dmlrlbcr.i'.f. 2002 3 174, 973 3 1,073,867 § [39&) 5 — § 1,875333 § [1.8568981) 5 219,980 § 3,040.672

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from nperatmﬂ actwntles

Depreciation
Amortization
l " Fair markst value of contributed services
Gain on sale of inventory :
- Deferred income tax expense (beneﬁt)
l Impairment loss
"Loss on sale of fixed assets
Gain on sale of notes receivable
(Increase) decrease in assers:
I * Accounts and other receivables
Other receivables * - _ )
. Prepaid expenses and other agsets
I Increase (decrease) in liabilities:”
" Accounts and expenses payable
Othcr liabilities

I Net cash pravided by (u.sed m) apemtmg acrrvme.s'

Cash ﬂows from investmg actlvitles
l . Cash payments for property and equipment
-Purchase of subsidiary and agency assets
.Purchase of insurance agency lnventory

Ner ca.s'h prav:a’ed by mvesrmg acnvmesA

Cash ﬂows from ﬁn:mcmg nctmtles
Deferred charges
Dividends paid .
Cash proceeds from bond issuance
. Cash proceeds from common stock issuance
Cash praceeds from preferred stock issuance -
'Payments on bond maturities
- Line of credit advance
Advances on short-term borrowmg
Payments on short-terrn borrowing
Advances on long-termn debt
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by (used in) financing ciétivr'ries

Net increase in cash and cash equivalénts .-
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Brooke Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001

2001

Procccds from sales of i insurance agency mveutory_

7,210.318

2002

1449875 § 695,408
303,407 241,167
505,803 199,447
30,000 40,000
(165,226) (676,503)
746,906 358,241
- 162,877

_ — 47397
(2,762,673) (507,670}
(1,596,378)  (5,224,794)
(1,341,547) (682,144)
(233,128) (181,270)
4,090,604 648,691
2927204 - 1281345
3,954,847 ( 597,808)
(1,756,687) (23'2,450)_

(2.224,816) . - .
" (7,083,787)  (3,040,593)

12,400,339 6,546,531
1,335,069 . 3273488
(629,364) (440,679)
- (531,486) - (232,7728)
2,510,000 4,560,000
~ 20,000 —
2,001,646 1,341,250
(1,003,000) (760,080)
960,000 960,000
— 778,064
(695,513) (909,088)
58,325 —
(5,556,573)  (2,368,143)
(2,867,467) 3428676
2,422,449 1,104,356
4,787,369 1,683,513
$ 4,787,869

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to financial statements.




Brooke Corporation
l Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
l . , YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001

1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
I fa) Orgﬁnigatian

Brooke Corporation was incorporated under the laws of the State of Kansas on January 17, 1986. The Company’s registered
offices are located in Phillipsburg, Kansas. On December 31, 2002, Brooke Holdings, Inc. owned 67.1% of the Company’s
common stock. The Company’s business activities include recruiting franchise agents, lending to franchise -agents and
consulting with franchise agents through its wholly owned subsidiaries. Most of the Company’s revenues resuli from the sale

of property and casualty insurance policies through franchise agents. :

All of the Company’s subsidiaries are 100% owned and controlled by the Company. Subsidiaries are grouped into one of
three segments that correspond to the Company’s three product lines: 1) master agent services, or franchising, 2} facilitator
services, or those activities primarily associated with the transfer of agency ownership, 3) and brokerage services, or those
I'activities primarily associated with the sale of insurance on a wholesale basis. Although the Company has multiple.
subsidiaries, the Company's services are sold and performed by one of three primary subsidiaries: Brooke Franchise
Corporation (formerly Interstate Insurance Group, LTD), Brooke Credit Corporarion and CJD & Associares, L.L.C.

Separate annual audited financial statements are typically prepared for Brooke Franchise -Corporation, Brooke Credit
Carporation and CYD & Associates, L.L.C. as each primary subsidiary operates independently from the other two primary
subsidiaries, and from the Company, to perform its specific business purpose. Each primary subsidiary is also responsible
Ifor its own obligations, maintains its own separate funds, generates revenue in its own right, hires its own employees-and .
maintains separate boards of directors. The Company provides accounting, administrative and legal support for the activities
of its three primary subsidiaries and Company revenues are typically limited to dividends and administrative fees from the.
primary subsidiaries.” . ' ' ' o T

Subsidiaries in the Master Agent group include: » '_ _ . : ) ~ L .

l Brooke Franchise Corporation, is'a Missouri corporation. On November 13, 2002, the Company chianged the subsidiary
_name from Interstaté Insurance Group, LTD to Brooke Franchise Corperation so.that the corporate name better identifies the
subsidiaty’s business purpose. The primary business-purpose of this subsidiary is franchising end providing services to,
franchise agents through its network of regional offices and service centers. Effective December 31, 2002, Brooke Franchise
Corporation became a franchiser and the assignee of franchise fees to be received by the Company pursuant to certain
franchise agreements previously executed - B e o
Brooke Agency, Inc., 2 Kansas corporation, is a licensed insurance agency that sells property and casualty insurance through
the Company’s network of franchise agents. Although Brooke Agency may be a party to contracts pursuant to which it

receives revenues, it does not conduct any operations and does not have auy revenues because all such revenues have been
assigned to Brooke Franchise Corporation for performance of any-associated obligations. ' .-
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Brooke Investments, fnc., a Kansas corporanon may offer insurance annuities and rnutual funds for sale through the
ICompany s network of franchise agents. Brooke Investments, Inc. will determine whether registration as a broker-dealer is
required and will register, if required, before investment services and securities are offerad. Althou,n Brooke Investments
may be a party to contracts pursuant to which it receives revenues, it does not conduct any operations and does not have any
Irevenues because all such revenues have been assigned to Brooke Franchise Corporation for performance of any associated
obligations. . , :

Brooke Agency Services Company of Nevada, LLC, is a licensed Nevada insurance agency that sells insurance thraugh the

Company's network of franchise agents. On November 18, 2002, the Company changed the subsidiary name from Brooke
ICorporanon of Nevada to Brooke Agency -Services Company of Nevada, LLC. Tlus subsidiary is vsed. for licensing

purposes. Although Brooke Corporation of Nevada may be a party to contracts pursuant to which it recesives revenues, it

does not conduct any operations and does not bave any revenues because all such revenues have been assigned to Brooke
IFranchlse Corporation for performance of any associated obligations.

Brooke Agency Services Company LLC is a Iu'ruted liability company organized under the laws of the state of Delaware an
June 24, 2002. It is a banlcmptey-remote special purpose entity heensed as an insurance agency created to offer property,
casualty, life and health insurance through certain agents with loans originated by Brooke Credit Corporation. It is
anticipated that Brooke Agency Services Compeny LLC will acquire ownership of franchise agreements from the Company
and/or Brocke Franchise Corporation as part of an arrangement to preserve collateral on behalf of Brooke Credit
ﬁorporation. It is also anticipated that Brooks Agency Services Company LLC will contract with the Company and/or
3rooke Franchise Corporation for performance of any obligations to agents associated with all such franchise agreements.

ockholders. This subsidiary is used for licensing purposes. Although First Brooke Insurance and Financial Services, Inc.
ay be a party to contracts pursuaat to which it receives revenues, it does not conduct any operations and does not have any

revenues because all such revenues have been assigned to Broolce Franchise Corporatlon for performancs of any associated
bhganons

Ersr' Brooke Insurance and Financial Services, Inc. is 2 Texas corporation controlled through an agreement with

Subsidia.ries in the Facilitator group include:

Erooka Credit Corporanan, 'a Kansas corporation, is a hcensed finance company that orltrmates loans primarily to the
ompany’s franchise agents. . This subsidiary also originates other types of loans through mdependent foan brokers and loan
. agents. Loans orlgmated by Brooke Credlt Corporanon and lts loan brokers are sold on a wholesale basis to participating

‘e:lers and other investors.

American Agemy Ine, a Kansas corporation, consults with agent sellers under the trade name of Agency Business'
" Consuitants. Although The Amencan Ageney, Inc. is a licensed insurance agency, substantlally all of the insurance program’
usiness of this subsu:hery has been conselidated into CJD & Associates, L.L.C. because its insurance business is similar to
t of this subsidiary,  Although The American Agency, Inc. may be 2 party to consulting and other zgraements, it does not”
conduct any operations and does not have any revenues because ail such consulting -and other fees have been asmgned to
rooke Franchise Corporatien as part of an agresment for Brooke Franchise Corporation to perfon:n thess consultmg services -

fu behalf of The American Agency th.rou,,h ltS regional ofﬁces and service center networlc.

-
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The American Heritage, Inc., a Kansas corporation, consults with and otherwise assists agent buyers under the trade pame of
Heritage Agency Consultants. Although The American Heritage, Inc. is a licensed insurance agency, substantially all of the
insurance program business of this subsidiary has been consolidated into CJD & Associates, L.L.C. because its insurance
business is similar to that of this subsidiary. | Although The American Heritage, Inc. may be a party to consulting and other
agreements, it does not conduct any operations and does not have any revenues because ail such consulting and other fees
have been assigned to Brooke Franchise Corporation as part of an agreement for Brooke Franchise Corporation to perform
these consuiting services on behalf of The American Heritage through its regional effices and service center nstwork.

Brooke Accqnt@ce Company LLIC is a Iimi_ted liability company organized under the laws of the state of Delawars on
July 31, 2002. It is-a bankruptcy-remote special purpose entity of Brooke Credit Corporation and is the anticipated purchaser
of Brooke Credit Corporation loans and issuer of certain floating rate asset backed notes.

Subsidiaries in the Brokerage group include;

CJD & Associates, L.L.C. is a limited liabﬂity company organized under the laws of the state of Kansas. This subsidiary is a
licensed insufance agency that sells insurance programs and excess surplus insurance on a wholesale basis, under the trade _
name of Davidson-Babcock, through the Company’s networlk of agents and through agents not necessarily affiliated with the

Company. : . : : ' '

Brooke Life and Health; Inc., a Kansas carporation, is a licensed insurance agency that sells life and health insurance through
the Company’s netwark of franchise agents, subagents and insurance producers: -Although Brooke Life and Health may be a
party to contracts pursuant to which it receives revenues, it does not conduct any operations and does not have any revenues -
because all such.revenues have been assigned to Brooke Franchise Corporation for performance of any assaciated
obligations. . . oo ' I o ' o

Brooke Bancshares, Inc.'was incorporated as a Kansas corporation in January of 2002 for the specific purpose of acquiring
and owning one.or more commercial banks. ‘However, the Company does not have plans for.any such acquisitions so this
subsidiary does'nat have, and is not expected to soon have, any revenues or operatons.: : R

(b) Use of Acqq;r;ﬁng Estimates . -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets, Habilities and disclosures. Accordinply,
the actual amounts could differ from those estimates. Any adjustments applied to estimated amounts are recognized in the
year in which such adjustments are determined. o : : Lo T

The following are si_gﬁiﬁcant estim‘ates made by management: accrued commission refund obligations, reimbursement from
agents for commission refund obligations, accrued producer payable expense, useful lives of assets, Buyers Assistance
Program unearned and earned percentages, the fair value assumptions wtilized for interest-only Strip receivables and Buyers

Assistance Program net cash flow expenditures associated with commission performance. It is at least reasonably possible
these estimates will change in the near term. o S - o
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(c) Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all césh on hand, cash in banks and short-term

investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. Restrictad cash is not included
in' cash equivalents. :

(d) - Allowance for‘ Bad Debts
recognized for uncollectible amounts. However, as more fully disclosed in footnote "1.{0), the Company has established an

allowance for receivables resulting from the uncertain timing and amounts of commissions payments due to the Company
pursuant to the cash flow assistance provisions of the Company’s Buyer’s Assistance Plan.

I The Com;;auy generally considers all accounts and notes receivable to be fully collectible, thersfore no allowance has been

(é.)- Revenue Recognition

certain cases, as of the effective date or billing - date, whichever is later. Contingent and profit sharing commissions are -
generally recognized when received. Premiums due from the insured-to the Company are reported as assets of the Company -

ICommission revenue on insurance policy premiums is generally recognized as of the effective date of the policies or, in

and as corresponding liabilities, net of commissions, to the insurancs carriers.

In the event of cancellation or reduction in premiums, for policies billed by an insurance carrier, a' percentage of the
commission revenue is often returned to the insuranée carrier. The commission refunds are calculated by the insurance
carriers and are typically deducted from amounts due to the Company from insurance carriers. The Company has estimated
and accrued a lability for commission refunds of $327,405 and $296,842 as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively,

Through its brokerage sub.sidiax"y; CJD & Associates, L.L.C., the Company receives fees for the placement and issuance of .

policies that are in addition to, and separate from, any sales commissions paid by insurance compaties, These fees are not
l;—eﬁmdable and the Company has no continuing obligation. . . S .

Through its suﬁsidiary The Ameﬁcan ‘Heritage, Inc., the Company pi-ovides c'ohsulting, maricetm'g and cash flow assistance to'
lagency owners during the first. months of agency ownership through a Buyers Assistance Plan (“BAP") program. The

Company has allocated the fees paid by agents for BAP assistance to each of the services provided by the Company and the
fee associated with.a particular service is recognized as revenue using the percentage of completion accounting method-by

referencing the costs incurred to date..

IMany of the' BAP services (inspection reports, .operations analysis, marketing plan development) are provided by the
Company before, or within thirty days after, agency acquisition. ‘As such, approximately 82% of those fees related to BAP
agreements executed in the fourth quarter of 2002 were immediately recognized as revenue. Any remaining BAP fees are

ically recognized throughout the BAP period as the remaining BAP related services are performed. The allocation of fees
for BAP agreements executed in the fourth quarter of 2002 changed from previous quarters as a result of discontinuing one

BAP related service and initiating. another. . The allocation-of future BAP fees may again change if the nawre, or timing, of

IBAP related services change.
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Revenues from finders fees, gains on sale of agencies, seller consulting and seller discounts are recognized immediately
because the Company has no continving obligation. .

4] Praperty and Equipment
Depreciable assets are stated at cost less accunulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged to expense using the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The following summarizes the estimated useful lives used by the
Company for various asset categories:

Descrintion Useful Life
.Furniture and fxtures 10 years
Office and computer equipment 5 years
Automaobiles . 5 years
Buildings 40 years

(2 Excess Cost of Purchased Subsidiary

Included in other assets are unamortized costs of purchased subsidiaries (Brooke Life and Health, Inc., The American
Agency, Inc. and CJD & Associates, L.L.C.) in excess of the fair value of underlying net tangible assets acquired. The
balance is being amortized over a 15-year period using an accelerated 150% declining balance switching to straight-line
method. Amortization was $150,280 for the period ended December 31, 2002. In 2001, management elected to reclassify
Investment in Agencies of $316,520 to this account because management’s intention was no longer to sell these agencies,
which, primarily consisted of an agency doing business as

Brooke Life/Health.

On July 1, 2002, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of CJD & Associates, L.L.C. and $1,416,779 of the
initial purchase price was allocated to Excess Cost of Purchased Subsidiary. The sellers may be entitled to an increase of the
initial purchase price based on the amount of monthly net revenues received in future periods. In accordance with
paragraph 80 of APB 16, “Business Combinations ", any such payments for an increased purchase price shall be recorded as
Excess Cost of Purchased Subsidiary when made.

In the third and fourth quarters of 2000, Interstate Insurance Group, LTD’s (now Brooke Franchise Corporation pursuant to
amended articles of incorporation dated November 15, 2002) primary supplier began exiting the limousine insurance market,
which comprised virtually all of Interstate’s insurance business, and revenues began decreasing. Based on these
circumstances, revenue and cash flow projections were revised, resulting in the recognition of impairment losses in the
Interstate unit of the insurance agency business segment of §300,000 and $162,877 in 2000 and 2001, respectively. The
amount of the Interstate impairment losses corresponds to the amounts recorded as Excess Cost of Purchased Subsidiary as
disclosed in foomote 13.
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I ) Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effect of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes currently
due plus deferred taxes related to net operating loss carryforwards that are available to offset future taxable income. The
I Company files its federal income tax return on a consolidated basis with its subsidiaries.

(i) Investment in Agencies

The amount of assets included in the “Investment in Agencies” category is the total of purchase prices paid, or market prices
if lower, for agency assets that the Company acquires to hold in inventory for sale to its agents. These assets are carried at
the lower of cost or market because they are available for sale and not held for investment. The number of agencies
purchased for this purpose for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 was 25 and 23, respectively. Correspondingly,

I the number of agencies sold from inventory during the same periods was 26 and 21, respectively. In 2001, the Company
elected to reciassify Investment in Agencies of $316,520 ta Other Assets because management’s intention was no longer to
sell these agencies, which primarily consists of an agency doing business as Brooke Life and Health. At December 31,
the Company’s Investment in Agencies coasisted of an Arizona agency purchased in October 2002 for $402,703. At

I December 31, 2001, the Company’s Investment in Agencies consisted of a Missouri agency purchased for $272,874 and a
Texas agency purchased for $594,446.

I G) Gain or Loss on Sale of Assets.

“Investment in Agencies” gains or losses are the difference between the insurance agency’s sales price and the insurance
agency’s book value, which is carried at the lower of cost or fair value, Insurance agencies are typically sold in the same units
as purchased. However, in instances where a part, or segment, of an insurance agency unit is sold, then management
estimates the fair value of the segment of the insurance agency unit being sold and the difference betwesn the sales price and
the resulting fair value estimation is the amount of the gain or loss. Any such fair value estimation is evaluated for
reasonableness by comparing the market value estimation of the segment to the book value for the entire insurance agency
unit. Fair vaiue estimations are based on comparable sales information that takes into consideration agency characteristics
such as customer type, customer account size, supplier size and billing methods.

I (% Contracts Database

The Contracts Database asset consists of the legal and professional fees associated with development of standardized loan
documents by Brooke Credit Corporation. These contracts are available for sale to others that make these types of loans, by
first purchasing a license from Brooke Credit Corporation. A complete review and revision is scheduled for all loan
documents every five years, therefore, the asset is being amortized over a five year period. :

I Also included in this asset are the ‘legal and professional fees associated with development of standardized documents

to the securitization and rating of loan pools in Brooke Credit Corporation’s portfolio. The development of these contracts
Creates & new security asset class, or program, whereby Brooke Credit Corporation can securitize multiple loan pools each
year with minimal additional legal and professional fees incurred. This asset is being amortized over a five year period

l because the benefits of this new asset class are expected to last at least five years and because significant changes to the
associated standardized documents will probably not be required for five years.

I - F-14




) Deferred Charges

Deferred charges relate to costs associated with the public offering of preferred stock and bonds. Selling expenses, auditor
fees, legal costs and filing charges associated with the Company’s public offering of stock totaled $1,070,043 and have been
offset against stock proceeds. Similar costs associated with the Company’s public offering of bonds totaled $414,088 and are
classified as prepaid expenses that are amortized over a period ending at bond or debenture maturity. Net of amaortization, the
balance of all such prepaid expenses as of December 31, 2002 was $260,684.

(m) Equity Rights and Privileges

Convertible preferred stockholders shall be entitled to 2 9% cumulative dividend in cash of the liquidation value of such
per share per annum, as determined by the Board of Directors. Convertible preferred stock may convert to common stock at a
rate of 13 shares of common stock for 1 share of preferred stock. Convertible preferred stock has no voting rights. Holders of
convertible preferred stock, upon liquidation or dissolution of the Company, are entitted to be paid an amount equal to $75
for each share of preferred stock not converted into common stock before any amount may be paid to holders of common
I stock. In addition to the convertible preferred stock, the Company is authorized to issue 499,000 shares of preferred stock.

The authorized shares consist of 100,000 shares of 2002 convertible preferred stock, 10,000 shares of 2002A convertible

preferred stock, and 34,375 shares of 2002B convertible preferred stock. The remaining 354,623 shares are “Undesignated”
I preferred stack. The holders of the 2002 and 20024 convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive a cumutative dividend

in cash at the rate of 10% of the liquidation value of such stock per share per annum if determined by the Board of Directors.
Prior to April 1, 2002, the holders ot 2002 and 2002A convertible preferred stock converted 60,333 of their preferred shares
into 60,333 shares of common stock. The holders of 2002 and 2002A convertible preferred stock that did not convert their
shares to common shares prior to April 1, 2002 have no conversion rights. In the case of liquidation or dissolution of the
l Company, the holders of the 2002 or 2002A convertible preferred stock shall be entitled to be paid in full the liquidation
value, $25 per share, after payment of full liquidation value to the holders of convertible preferred stock and before the
holders of common stock. The holders of 2002B convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive a cumulative dividend in
I cash at the rate of 9% of the liquidation value of such stock per share per annum if determined by the Board of Directors. On
or prior to May 15, 2002, the holders of 2002B convertible stock converted 9,822 of their preferred shares into 9,822 shares
of common stock. The holders of 20028 convertible preferred stock that did not convert their shares to common shares on or
prior to May 13, 2002 have no conversion rights. In the case of liquidation or dissolution of the Company, the holders of the
I 2002B convertible preferred stock shall be entitled to be paid in full the liquidation value, $32 per share, after payment of fuall
liquidation value to the holders of convertible preferred stock, 2002 convertible preferred stock, 2002A convertible preferred
stock, and before the holders of common stock. The common stockholders shall possess all rights and privileges afforded to
I capital stock by law, subject to holders of convertible preferred stock. '
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I n Per Share Data

Basic pet income per share is calculated by dividing net income, less preferred stock dividends declared in the period
(whether or not paid) and the dividends accumulated for the period or cumulative preferred stock (whether or not earned), by
the average number of shares of the Company’s commen stock outstanding. Total preferred stock dividends declared during
the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 were $214,157 and $66,381, respectively. Diluted net income per share is
calculated by including the probable conversion of prefemred stock to common stock, and then dividing net income, less
preferred stock dividends declared on non-convertible stock during the period (whether or not paid) and the dividends

I accumulated for the period on non-convertible cumulative preferred stock (whether or not carmed), by the adjusted average
number of shares of the Company’s common stock outstanding.

‘ 2002 2001
Basic Earnings Per Share
Net Income 5 1,445,875 § 605,408
Less: Preferred Stock Dividends (214,157) (66,381)
Income Available to Common Stockholders 1,235,718 625,027
Average 2002 Common Stock Shares 757,518
Less: 2002 Treasury Stock Shares {11,050) 746,468 692,968
Basic Earnings Per Share 3 1.66 3 .91
2002 2001
Diluted Earuings Per Share
Net Income 3 1,449875 § 695408
Less: 2002 Preferred Stock Dividends on Non-Convertible
Shares {148,686) —
Income Available to Common Stockholders 1,301,189 695,408
Average 2002 Common Stock Shares 757,518
Less: 2002 Treasury Stock Shares - (11,050)
Plus: Allowance for Shares Converted During 2002 10,153
‘Plus; Assumed Conversion of Convertible Preferred Shares in
2002 34,742
Plus: Assumed Exercise of 41,350 Stock Options in 2002 41,350 832,713 776,771
Diluted Eamings Per Share _ b 136 § .90
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(0) Buyer Assistance Plan

Through its subsidiary The American Heritage, Inc., the Company offers a consulting and cash flow assistance program
(Buyer Assistance Plan or “BAP"™ to provide assistance to agency buyers during the first months of insurance agency
ownership. Although most of the BAP services provided by the Cowpany are performed in the first month of agency
ownership, some of the BAP services are performed later and a portion of BAP fees are therefore deferred until the cost of

providing the service is incurred. Unearned buyer assistance plan and other related fies were $1,666,417 and $928,232 at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Net cash flow assistance related to commission performance is recognized as an expense at the end of the BAP period,
because of the uncertain timing of commission payments during ownership transition. Although not dzterminable until the
end of the BAP period, the amount of the Company’s net cash flow assistance expenditures associared with commission
performance becomes more certain as the BAP period progresses. As such, if the amount of cumulative net cash flow
assistance provided by the Company exceeds 200% of the monthly gross cash flow assistance then an allowance for any such
excess amount is immediately charged to expense and the amount recognized as expense at the end of the BAP period
adjusted accordingly. If necessary, as the BAP period nears expiration, the Company increases the allowance from that

calculated above to the amount of estimated loss. The Company has estimated this allowancs at December 31, 2002 to be
3317,619. No allowance was recorded at December 31, 2001.

(p) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant infercompany
l accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation of the financial statzaments,

() Accounts and Notes Receivable, Nzt

I The net notes receivable included as part of the “Accounts and Notes Receivable, Net” asset category are available for sale

and are carried at the lower of cost or market, Accordingly, any changes in the net notas receivable balances are classified as
an operating activity. :

l (*} Other Receivables

Included in this category are reimbursements due from agents for possible cancellation of policies, advances of commission
to ageats, receivables from sellers on contracts of services and advances to vendors on behalf of franchise agents. Most of
I these amounts are collected within 30 days from borrowers or agents and all amounts are collected within 12 months from

date of recording.
(s) Advertising

The Company expenses the costs of advertising as they are incurred. Total adverdsing expense for the pericd ending
I December 31, 2002 and 2001 was $843,3354 and $300,564, respectively.

(t) Restricted Cash

Cash payments are made monthly to First National Bank of Phillipsburg as trustee for the Industrial Ravenue Bonds. These
Iﬁmds are held by the trustee for payment of semi-annual interest and principal payments to bond holders on January 1% and

July 1*. The Company also holds a $150,000 cash deposit made by a borrower for the purpase of making futme loan
Ipaymeuts and the use of these funds are restricted to this purpose; -~ = = -0 s s o e e e e
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(u) Compensated Absences

The Company has not accrued compensated absences, however, the total amount is not deemed to be material,
(v} Agency Assets

Included in other assets are unamortized costs of agency assets. The balance is being amortized aver a 15-year period using
an accelerated 150% declining balance switching to straight-line method. Amortization expense was 513,182 for the year
ended December 31, 2002,

On August 1, 2002 the Company acquired insurance agency assets operating under the trade-name of Bornstein Financial
Group for an initfal purchase price of $200,000. The sellers may be entitled to an increase of the initial purchase price based
on the amount of premiums received in fiture periods. In accordance with paragraph 80 of APB 16, “Business
Combinations ", any such payments for an increased purchase price shall be recorded as an Agency Asset when made. The
balance of this agency asset is being amortized over a 15-year period using an accelerated 150% declining balance method.

As a result of the acquisition of CID & Associates, L.L.C. on July 1, 2002, the Company recorded addirional agency assets of
$130,308 (net of accumulated amortization of $63,155). CJID & Assoctates, L.L.C. had previously amortized this agency

asset balance using a straight-line method over a 15-year period and the Company switched to an accelerated 150% declining
balance method over a 15-year period.

{w) Value of Service Rendared

For the nine month pericd ended September 30, 2002, the fair value of Robert Orr's services was estimated at $30,000 even
though he did not receive direct compensation from the Company. This value was established after apalysis of the time
Robert Orr spent on Company activities and not necessarily the amount of contribution made by Robert Orr, the importance
of Robert Orr’s contributions, or the Company’s dependence on Robert Orr. On October 1, 2002, Robert Orr began recejving
direct compensation from the Company at the rate of $15,000 per month as a result of the increased commitment required
from Robert Orr to implement the Company’s plans.
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2, Notes Receivable _
l At December 31, 2002 and 2001, notes receivable consist of the following:
2002 2001
l Agency loans’ $ S8,478811 § 37712037
Less: Agency loan participations (57,647,259) (34,695,956)
Commercial real estate loans 1,869,057 0
Less: Real estate loan participations (1,869,057) 0
Equipment loans 0 1,927
Less: Equipment loan participations 0 (1,927)
Consumer loans 5,500 228,603
l -Less: Consumer loan participations 0 {220,412)
Total notes receivable, net 837,052 3,021,174
Interest earned not coliected on notes * 429211 461,970
Customer receivables 7,970,282 4,327,544
I Total accounts and notes receivable, net $ 9.236.545 § 7,810,688

*The Company has a corresponding Habfﬁty for interest payable to participating lenders in the amounts of $265,678 and
$384,046 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Included in customer receivables are notes totaling $1,097,081 which were sold to a third party. However, this sale was not
treated as a transfer of assets in accordance with SFAS 140 because there was no written agreement and it was not
I sufficiently demonstrated that the Company had surrendered control to the extent required to remove the assets from the

Company’s baoks. Accordingly, a payable of $1,516,614 was recorded for the amount of the notes and note payments
collected but not remitted,

l Loan participation represents the transfer of notes receivable, by sale, to “participating” banks and finance companies. The
Company receives consideration from the participating entities. In accordance with SFAS 140 Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, these transfers are accounted for as sales. The transferred
assets (i.e. notes receivable) are isolated from the Company. The participating companies obtain the right, free of conditions
that constrain it from taking advantage of that right, to pledge or exchange the notes receivables. In addition, the Company
does not maintain control over the transferred assets and the transfer agreements do not entitle the Company or obligate the
Company to repurchase or redeem the notes receivable before their maturity. Based on managemeni’s experience the

Ic:irrying value for notes receivable approximates the fair value.

When the Company sells participation in notes receivable to investors, it retains servicing rights and intarest income which
are retained interests in the loan participations. Gain or loss on sales of the notes receivable depends in part on the previous
carrying amount of the financial assets involved in the transfer, allocated between the assets sold and the retained interests
based on their relative fair value at the date of transfer.
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In all loan participation sales, the Company retains servicing responsibilities for which it typically receives annual servicing
fees ranging from .25% to 1.375% aof the outstanding balance. In those instances wherzsby annual service fees received by the
Company are less than the cost of servicing, which is estimated at .25% of the outstanding balance, a servicing liability is
recorded. Additionally, the Company often retains interest income. The Company’s right to interest income is not
subordinate to the investor’s interests and the Company shares interest income with investors on a prorata basis. Although

lnot subordinate to investor’s interests, the Company’s retained interest is subject to credit and prepayment risks on the
transferred financial assets.

On December 31, 2002, the Company had loan participation balances of $59,516,316 (307 loan participations certificates) for
which servicing rights and interest receivable were retained. Corresponding pre-tax gains of $2,762,673 were recorded for
the year ended December 31, 2002. On December 31, 2001, the Company had loan participation balances of 534,922,295
(111 loan participation certificates) for which servicing rights and interest receivable were retained. Corresponding pre-tax
Iga'um of $307,670 were recorded for the year ended December 31, 2001. Subsequent to the initial recording at fair value, the
servicing asset is amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income. Additionally, impairment
of the servicing asset is subsequently evaluated and measured. Subsequent to the initial recording at fair value, interest only
eceivables are measured as debt securities classified as available for sale. :

Of the agency and real estate loans at December 31, 2002 and 2001, $18,150,555 and $10,123,323, respectively, were sold to
various participating lenders with recourse to Brooke Credit Corporation. Such recourse is limited to the amount of actual
Erincipal and interest loss incurred and any such loss is not due for payment to the participating lender uneil such time as all
ollateral is liquidated, all actions against the borrower are completed and all liquidation proceeds applied. However,
participating lenders may be entitled to periodic advances from Brooke Credit Corporation against liquidarion proceeds in the
ount of regular loan payments. Brooke Credit Corporation is not obligated, under any circumstances, to repurchase any
Eg]ans sold to participating lenders prior to maturity or final resolution. All such recourse loans: a) have no balances more than
0 days past due; b) have adequate collateral; ¢) and are not in default. The expense provision associated with the
Company’s recourse obligation is based on the estimated fair value of the obligation.

o obtain fair values of retained interests and recourse obligations, quoted market prices are used if available. However,
quotes are generally not available for retained interests, so the Company typically estimates fair value based oa the present
value of future expected cash flows estimated using management’s best estimates of key assumptions, credit losses,

l:repayment speed and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved.

The predominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans of the Company’s servicing assets have been analyzed by
anagement to identify how to stratify servicing assets for the purpose of evaluating and measuring impairment. The
Enderlying loans are very similar in virtuaily all respects, however management has concluded that these underlying loans
vith adjustable interest rates should be evaluated separately from loans with fixed interest rates, Accordingly, different key
economic assumptions would be used when determining the fair value of fixed rate loans than have beeq used for adjustable
atz loans. However, the total amount of underlying loans that are fixed rate is not material so no evaluation of fair value has
‘een made for the fixed rate loan stratum. As such, all underlying loans are part of the same stranm and have been evaluated
using the key economic assumptions identified for adjustable rate loans. No valuation allowance has besn established
.because the fair value for the adjustable rate loan stratum is not less than the carrying amount of the servicing assets.
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Although substaatially all of the compaﬁy’s loans are adjustable, a discount rate has been applied to reflect the net present
value of future revenue streams. As such, changes in the net present value rate, or discount rate, resulting from interest rate
variations, would adversely affect the asset’s fair value.

The fair value of the interest-ouly strip receivable is calculated by estimating the net present value of interest income on loans
sold using the discount rate and prepayment speeds noted in the following table. The fair value of the interest-only strip
receivable is reduced by the amount of estimated credit losses, which are calculated using the estimated credit loss perceatage
noted in the following table. On December 31, 2002 and 2001, the fair value of the interest-only strip receivable recorded by

the Compauy was $1,883,276 and $184,412, respectively, The Company has classified the interest-only receivable asset ag
available for sale. :

The fair value of the “Servicing Asset” (or liability) is calculated by estimating the net present value of net servicing income
(or expense) on loans sold using the discount rate and prepayment speeds noted in the following table. On December 31,
2002 and 2001, the fair value of the servicing asset recorded by the Company was $1,238,984 and $293,276, respectively.

Key economic assumptions used in measuring the retained interests and recourse obligations at the date of loan participation
sales completed during the year were as follows (rates per annum): :

Agency Loans Agency Loans
{Adfustable Rate (Fixed-Rate
Stratum)* . Siratum)
Prepayment speed 1043 8%
Weighted average life ftnonths) 104.6 64.9
Expected credit losses 5% 1.5%

Discount rate 8.5% 2.5%

*Rates for these loans are adjusted based on an index (for most loans, the New York prime rate plus 3.50%).
Contract terms vary but, for most loans, the rate is adjusted annually on December 31%,
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At December 31, 2002, key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the cufrcut fair value of residual cash flows to
immediate 10 percent and 20 percent adverse changes in those assumptions are as follows:

Agency Loans Agency Loans
{Adjustable Rate (Fixed Rate
. . Stratum) Stramum)

I Prepayment speed assuraption (annual rate) 10% 8%

Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change b (85,378) $ ©)

l Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change b (166,555) §$ (0)
Expected credit losses (annual rate) 5% 21%

Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change - s (23,863) § (1,578)

' Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change s 47,726) 3 (3,157
Discount rate (aonnual) 8.5% 8.5%

I Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change $ (71,640) $ (3,531

Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change b (148,437) $ (6,964)

These sensitivities are hypotheticai and should be used with caution. The effect of a variation in a particular assumption on
lthe fair value of the servicing asset and recourse liability is calculated without changing any other assumption; in reality,

changes in one factor may result in changes in another, which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities. The numbers
used above are actual dollar amounts and not listed in the thousands.

The above adverse changes are calculated on the Company's retained interests in loans sold to participating lenders totaling
$39,516,316 and excludes unsold loans totaling $837,052. The above adverse changes for expected credit losses are

calculated on the Company’s retained interests in loans sold with recourse to participating lenders totaling $18,150,555 and
Iexcludes unsold and non-recourse loans totaling $42,202,813.

The following illustrate how the changes in fair values were calculated for 10% and 20% adverse ¢

hanges in key economic
lassumptions.

ect of Increases in Agsumed Prepayment Speed on Retained Servicing Interest
l Adjustable Rate Stratum Fixed Rate Stratum
18% 20% 10% 20%
Prepayment Prepayment Prepayment Prepayment
. Increase Increase Increase lnerease
Estimated cash flows from loan servicing fees 5 2,173,224 § 2,105425 § 175,638 § 172,772
l Servicing expense (503,313) (487,701) (166,377) (163,431)
Discount of estimated cash flows at 8.5% rate (473,241) {454,748) (2,3156) (2,396)
Carrying value of retained interests after effect of
l increases 1,196,670 1,162,976 6,945 6,945
Camrying value of retained interests before effect :
_ of increases (1,232,039)  (1,232,039) (6,945) {(6,945)
Decrease of carrying value due to increase in
l " prepayments § (35369) 8 _ (69,063) § 0 s 0
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Effect of Increases in Assumed Prepayment Speed on Retajned Interest (Strip Receiyable)

Ad]ustable Rate Stratum Fixed Rate Stratum
10% 20% 18% 20%
Prepayment  Prepayment  Prepayment Prepayment
. s Increase Increase Increase Increase
Estimated cash flows from interest income $2,452402 $2,369,686 $§ 257,176 § 254,052
Estimated credit losses on recourse loans (294,376)  (286,125) (18,702) (18,371)
Discount of estimated cash flows at 8.5% rate (525,089)  (498,70T) (39,514) (38,637)
Carrying value of retained interests after effect of
increases 1,632,337 1,584,854 198,560 197,044
Carrying value of retained interests before effect of
increases (1,682,346) (1,682,346)  (200,930)  (200,930)
Decrease of carrying value due to increase in .
prepayments $§ (50,009 $§ (97,492) §  (1,970) § 3,886
Effect of Increases in Assymed Credit T.oss Rate on Retained Interest {Strip Receivable)
Adjustable Rate Stratum Fixed Rate Stratum
10% 20% 10% 20%
Credit Loss CreditLosy ° CreditLoss  Credit Loss
- Increase - Inecrease Increase Increase
Estimated cash flows from inierest income $ 2,535,964 $ 2,539,964 § 260,393 § 260,393
Estimated credit losses on recourse loans (334,696) (385,124) (20,947 (22,351)
Discount of estimated cash flows at 8.5% rate (546,783)  (540,220) (40,094) (39,769)
Carrying value of retained interests after effect of _
increases . 1,658,483 1,634,620 199,352 197,773
Carrying value of retained interests before effect of
increases (1,682,346) (1,682,346) _ (200,930)  (200,930)
Decrease of carrying value due to increase in credit :
losses $ (23,863)8 (47,726)8  (1,57/)8 (3157
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ect creases in_As ed Discount Rate on Retained Servyici Interest
Adjustable Rate Stratum Fixed Rate Stratum -
10% 20% 10% 0%
] Discount Rate  Discount Rate  Discount Rate  Discount Rate
. K Increase Increase Incrense Increase
Estimated cash flows from loan servicing fees $ 22447438 2244743 8 178,581 § 178,581
Servicing expense : (520,381) (520,381) (169,404) (169,404)
Discount of estimated cash flows (5322,890) (360,279) (2,322) (2,410)
Carrying value of retained interests after effect of
increases 1,201,472 1,164,083 6,833 6,767
Carrying value of retained interests before effect of :
inereases . (1,232,039)  (1,232,039) (6,945) {6,945)
Decrease of carrying value due to increase in
discount rate ’ § (30,5678 (67.956\8 (9$ {178y

ect of Increases in Assumed Digconnt Rate on Retained Interest Strip Receivable)

Adjustable Rate Stratum Fixed Rate Stratom
10% 20% 10% 0%
Discount Rate Discount Rate  Discount Rate  Discount Rate
Increase Increase Increase Inerease
Estimated cash flows from interest income $ 2539964 $ 2,539,964 § 260,393 § 260,393
Estimated credit losses on recourse loans (304,269) (304,269) (19,043) (19,043)
Discount of estimated cash flows {594,422) (633,830) (43,861) (47.206)
Carrying value of retained interests after effect of
increases . 1,641,273 1,601,863 197,489 194,144
Carrying value of retained interests before effect of '
increases (1,682,346} (1,682,346) (200,930)  (200,930)
Decrease of carrying value due to increase in credit
losses $ _ (41,07H3  (80431)8 (3,441)8 (6,786)

The following is an illustration of disclosure of expected static pool credit losses for loan participations sold with recourse to
the Company. “Static pool credit loss” is an analytical tool that matches credit losses with the corresponding loans so that

loan growth does not distort or minimize actual loss rates. The Company discloses static pool loss rates by measuring credit
losses for loans originated in each of the last three years,

Agency Recourse Loans Sold in
Actual & Projected Credit Losses (%) ay of: 2000 2001 2002

December 31, 2002 0 0 0
December 31, 2001 ‘ 0 0
December 31, 2000 0




The following table presents quantitative information about delinquencies, net credit losses and components of loan
I participations sold with recourse as of and for the period ended December 3 1, 2002 and 2001:

Principal
Amounts 60
) Tatal Principat Amount or More Days Net Credit
I N . of Loang#**#* Past Due* Losseg*#*>
Type of Loan 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Participations Sold with Recourse $ 18,150,555 $10,123,323 § 05 03 05 0
Portfolio Loans 837,052 2,783,523 0 0 0 0
Total Loans Managed** § 18,987,607 $12906.846 § 05 0 % 05 0

*Loans 60 days or more past due are based on end of period total loans.
** Owned and participated loans in which the Company has a risk of loss.
*** Net credit losses are charge-offs and are based on total loans outstanding.

****Represents the principal amount of the loan. Interest receivable and servicing rights held for participation loans
are excluded from this table because they are recognized separately.

As an employment incentive, Brooke Credit Corparation has loaned money to certain employees for the
the Company’s common stock. Of the consumer loans at December 3 1, 2002 and 2001, $0 and $198,86
been made to employees for this purpose.

purpose of acquiring
2, respectively, have

3. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment and depreciation is as follows:

2002 2001
Furiture and fixtures 5 451,063 § 279,649
Office and computer equipment 777,637 1,516,168
Automobiles 774,644 604,284
Building 1,170,596 —
. 4,173,940 2,402,101
.Less: Accumulated depreciation . (1,854,952) (1,732,325)
Property and equipment, net . $2318988 § 649776
Depreciation expense $ 303,407 S 241,167
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Bank Loans, Notes Payable, and Other Long-Term Obligations

First National Bank & Trust, Phillipsburg, KS, line of credit, $960,000
available, $0 not utilized. Due Janvary 2004, Interest rate is §%.
Collateralized by accounts receivable.

Staté Bank of Colwich, Colwich, KS, due August 2004, Interest rate is
11.75%, payable $1,435 monthly. Collateralized by insurance agency assets.
Chrysler Financial, Overland Park, XS, due February 2001 to December
2003. Interest rates are 7.80% to 8.94%, payable monthly. Collateralized by
automobiles.

Brooke Investments, Inc., Phillipsburg, K§, due February 2007. Interest rate
is 10.00%, payable $1,718 monthly. Note is sold to participating bank.
Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke Investments, Inc.
Premier Insurance Agency Interest rate is 5.00%, balance due January 2002.
Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke Corporation.
Hawkeye Insurance Associates, Inc. due August 2005. Interest rate is 0%,
annual payments of $66,086. Collateralized by certain agency assets
acquired by Brooke Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on
imputed interest rate of 5.75%.

Charles Compton, due March 2004. Interest rate is 0% and annual payments
of $133,333. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke
Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on imputed interest rate of
5.75%. .

Carol Klinger, Inc., due July 2003. Interest rate is 0%, balance dne at
maturity.” Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke

"Corporation.

Watson & Associates Insurance Services, Inc. due November 2004. Interest
rate is 0%, annual payments of $57,167. Collateralized by certain agency
assets acquired by Brooke Corporation. .

JL Rucker Insurance due January 2002. Interest rate is 0%. Collateralized
by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke Corporation.

Burt Insurance Services due October 2005. Interest rate iz 0% with agnual
payments of $126,700. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Brooke Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on imputed interest
rate of 5.75%.

InsurCare Group Inc. due October 2005. Interest rate is 0% with annual
payments of $21,232. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Brooke Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on imputed interest
rate of 5.75%. :
Arizona Economy Insurance due October 2005. Interest rats 0% with annual
payments of $87,342. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Brooke Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on imputed interest
rate of 5.75%.
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Stratmann Insurance Agency, Inc. due May 2004. Interest rate 0% with
annual payments of $7,253 coatingent on the renewal of specific policies.
Slaton Insurance of Jacksonville, Inc. due August 2003. Interest rate-is 0%
and entire balance, subject to retention of revenue, due at maturity.
Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke Corporation.
Comittt-McIntire & Ratterman, Inc. due November 2005. Interest rate is
0%, quarterly payments of $20,280. Collateralized by certain agency assets
acquired by Brooke Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on
imputed interest rate of 5.75%.

R.D. Kennelly Insurance, Inc. due January 2005. Interest rate is 0%. Semi-
annual payments of $179,959. Collateralized by certain agency assets
acquired by Brooks Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on
imputed interest rate of 5.75%. ‘

Eric W. Schoenig, due Jupe 2005. Interest rate is 8%, payable $6,991
monthly. Collateralized by certain agency assets.

Benny J. Ossi, due February 2004. Interest rate is 8%, payable $8,137
monthly. Collateralized by certain agency assets.

Rio Valley Insurance Group, Inc. due Febrary 2004. Interest rate is 0% and
the remaining balance is paid semi-annuaily with the 1®payment of $70,000
and the remaining two payments of $67,000. Collateralized by certain

‘agency assets acquired by Brooke Corporation. Note balance is discounted

based on imputed interest rate of 5.75%.
Dawn Insurance Agency, Inc. due May 2003. Interest rate is 0%, payable

$43,322 annually. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
‘Brooke Corporation.

Phares and Lites Agency, Inc. due June 2002. Interest rate is 0%, entire
balance is due at maturity. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired
by Brooke Corporation.

Bruner Insurance Agency, due September 2002. Interest rate i3 5%, balance
due September 2002. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Brooke Corporation.

Lalumondier Insurance, Inc., due September 1, 2004. Interest tate is 5%,
annual installments of $68,215. Collateralized by certain agency assets
acquired by Brooke Corporation.

Anderson Insurance Agency, Inc, due May 2002. Interest rate is 7.5%, entire
balance is due at maturity, Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired
by Brooke Corporation. .
Bond-Pyatt Insurance Agency, Inc., due August 2006. Interest rate at prime
rate, first installment of $89,463 due January 2002, and annual installments
of 589,465 thereafter. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Breoke Corporation.
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Della Bell Agency, due March 2002. Interest rate is 0%, entire balance due
at maturity. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke
Corporation.

Mid Florida Insurance, Inc., due January 2002. Interest rate is 0%, entire
balance due at maturity. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Brooke Corporation.

All Drivers Insurance Inc., due September 2003. Interest rat= is 5%, annual
payments of $112,500. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Brooke Corporation.

Gateway Realty of Columbus, Inc., due Septermber 2010. Interest rate is 7%,
annual principal payments of $67,345. Collateralized by certain agency
assets acquired by Brooke Corporation.

Gary Karch & Associates A-1 Insurance, due December 20072, Interest rate
is 0%. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke
Carporation.

Kohn-Senf Insurance Agency, Inc., due December 2002. Interest rate is 5%,
eatire balance due at maturity. Collateralized by certain agency assets
acquired by Brooke Corporation.

Sun Century Insurance Agency, Inc.,, due December 2003. Interast rate is
3%, annual principal payments of $67,333. Collateralized by certain agency
assets acquired by Brooke Corporation.

W.I. of Florida, Inc., due December 2003. Interest rate is 0%, annual
payments of $73,176. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Brooke Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on imputed interest
rate of 5.75% '

Cooper Insurance Agency, Inc., due August 2003. Interest rate is 0%, -

balance is due at maturity. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired
by Brooke Corporation.

JD Failla & Associates, due February 2003. Interest rate is 0%, quarterly

payments of §127,188. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Brooke Corporation.

Donna Sue Saffel, due March 2003. Interest rate is 0%, aanvat payments of
$62,500. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke
Corporation, . :

All Tnsurance, due March 2005. Interest rate is 0%, annual peyments of
$25,196. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke
Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on imputed interest rate of
5.75%.

Able Insurance, due March 2006. Interest rate is 0%, annual payments of
$45,867. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke
Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on imputed interest rate of
5.75%.
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Rebel Auto Insurance, Inc., due May, 2003. Interest rate is 0% and one

payment of rernaining balance is due May, 2003. Collateralized by certain

agency assets acquired by Brooke Corporation. $ 87,500 §
Crouch Insurance Agency, LLC, due May 2004. Interest rate is 0%, annnal

payments of $97,970. Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by

Brooke Corporation. Note balance is discounted based on imputed interest

rate of 3.75%. 180,249
NCMIC Finance Corporation, Des Moines, IA, due June 2003. Interest rate

i 7.75% and nine monthly payments of $38,017. Collateralized by unearned

insurance premium. 2219164 _

Total bank loans and notes payable | 6,384,738 5,785,058

Bonds and Debentures payable (See Note 5) and Capital lease obligation

(See Note 6) 7,285,000 - 5,780,000

Total bank loans, notes payable and other long-term obligations 13,669,738 11,565,058

Less: Current maturities and short-term debt (3,263,803) (4,166,123)
Total long-term debt $10,405,933 § 7,398,935

None of the bank loans, notes payable and other long term obligations contain covenants that: require the Company to
maintain minimum financial ratios or net worth; restrict management’s ability to pay dividends; restrict management's ability
to buy or sell assets; restrict management’s ability to incur additiona) debt; or contain any subjective acceleration clauses.

Interest incurred on bank loans, notes payable and other long-term obligations for the period ended Decamber 31, 2002 and
2001 is $748,874 and $513,193, respectively. Short-term debt represents the non-cash investing transactions utilized to
l purchase agency assets.

Bank loans, notes payable and other long-term obligations mature as follows:

I Bonds &
Twelve Months Ending . Bauk Loans & Debentures
December 31 . Notes Payable Capital Leaase Payable Tata|
2003 3 2,833,805 § 60,000 $ 365,000 3 3,263,805
2004 2,223,372 " 70,000 5,020,000 7.313,372
2005 834,424 70,000 725,000 1,629,424
2006 218,754 80,000 — 298,754
2007 67,345 80,000 380,000 527,345
Thereafter . 202,038 435,000 —_ 637,038
’ ] $ 6384718 S 795,000 § 6,490,000 $ 13,669,738
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l 5. Long-Term Debt, Bonds Payable

Brooke Credit Corporation has offered secured bonds {series 1997A, 1997B and 1997C) for sale to institutional investors in
35,000 denominatious. Brooke Credit Corporation has also offered secured bonds (series 1998E, and 2001F) for sale to the
public in $5,000 denominations. These bonds are issued in registered form with interest payable semi-annually on January 15t
and July 1% of each year. These bonds are not callabie by Brooke Credit Corporation and are not redeemable by the
bondholder until maturity. Brooke Credit Corporation covenants to use all bond proceeds for the purposes of funding loans

or purchasing receivables. Brooke Credit Corporation has no other debt and covenants not to incur obligations superior to its
I obligations to bondholders.

The Company is offering unsecured debentures (Series A and Series B) for sale to the public in denominations of $1,000 with
a minimum purchase amount of $5,000. The bonds will be issued in book-entry form and registered in the name of The
. Depository Trust Company or its nominee. Interest is paid semi-annuatly on December 1% and June 1%, The Series B
debentures are callable on the third year anniversary of the issuance of the debentures. The Company plans to use the

debenture sale proceeds to acquire insurance agencies for inventory, make corporate acquisitions, purchase loan participation
l certificates or make short term working capital loans to insurance agents or our other subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the bonds and debentures payable consist of

l . 2002 Principal 2001 Principal
Series Rate Maturity Value Value
19978 Bonds 10.250% Jan 1, 2002 $ — 8 153,000
1997C Bonds 10.500% JIan 1, 2003 365,000 365,000

I 1998E Bonds 10.125% Jan 1, 2002 — 820,000
2001F Bonds 9.125% Jul 1, 2004 5,020,000 4,440,000
Series A Debentures . 3.000%Dec 1, 2005 725,000 —_

I Series B Debentures : 9.250%Dec 1, 2007 380,000 —
Total $ 6,490,000 § 5,780,000

. Interest payable is $255,962 and $205,415 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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I 6. Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases

Phillips County, Kansas has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds for the purpose of purchasing, renovating, and equipping an
office building in Phillipsburg, Kansas for use as a processing center. The total bonds issued were $825,000 with various

maturities through 2012. As of December 31, 2002, ail bond proceeds had been released for payment to various contractors
and building construction was substantially complete.

The Company leases the building irom Phillips County, Kansas. It may be purchased for a nominal amount at the expiration
Iof the lease agreement. The Company is required to provide insurance coverage on the building as specified by the lessor.

Under the criteria established by SFAS 13, “dccounting for Leases” this asset has been capitalized in the Company’s
financial statements. : '

I Future capital lease payments and long term operating lease payments are as follows:
Capital Operating
Real Real
Period Estate Estate Total
2003 S 115,163 § 454,160 § 569,323
2004 121,450 256,824 378274
2005 117,119 161,787 308,906
2006 122,450 116,846 239,296
2007 117,100 20,340 137,440
2008 and thereafter 521,843 — 521,843
Total minimum lease payments 5 1,115125% 1,039957§ 2,135,082
‘Less amount representing interest (320,125)
Total obligations under capitai leases : 795,000
- Less current maturities of obligations under capital
leases (60,000)

Obligations under capital leases payable after cne year § 735,000
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7. Income Taxes
The elements of income tax expense ('Beneﬁt) are as follows:
2002 2001

Current b — 5 —
Deferred 746,906 358,241

$ 746,906 $ 358241

The Company used net operating loss carryforwards to offset current tax expense by decreasing the deferred tax asset.

I Reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to Brooke Corporation’s effective tax rate on pretax income, based on the
dollar impact of this major component on the current income tax expense:

2002 2001
I U.S. federal statutory tax rate 34% 34%
State statutory tax rate 4% 4%
Effect of the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards 3 (3)
I Miscellaneous (1) (1
Effective tax rate ' 3424 34%
I Reconciliation of deferred tax asset:
2002 2001
I Beginning balance, January 1 $ 906,543 § 1,264,784
Deferred income tax (expense) benefit (746,506) (358.241)
I Balance, December 31 : $ 159637 $ 906,543

Expiration date of net operating loss carryforward is December 31, 2020 in the amount of § 469,520.

8 . Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a defined contribution retirement plan covering substantially all employees. Employees may contribute up
to 15% of their compensation. The Company may contribute an additional amount to the plan at the discretion of the Board
I of Directors. No employer contributions were charged to expense for the years ended December 3 1,2002 and 2001.

9. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash balances at several banks. On December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Cortpany had account
balances of $1,281,038 and $4,943,574 respectively, with cne bank which exceeds the $100,000 insuracce limit of the
l Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company sells participation loans to several banks, On December 31, 2002, the

Company had participation loans sold of $26,038,327 to one financial institution. This represents 44% of participations sold
at December 31, 2002, '




10. Segment and Related Information

During 2002, the Company acquired CID & Associates which added an increasingly significant volume of insurance
brokerage business to the Company’s existing insurance franchise business. As such, for the year ended December 31, 2002,
the Company has separated the segment previously referred to as Insurance Agency Business into two segments, Insurance

' Franchise Business and Insurance Brokerage Business. For the year ended December 31, 2001, commissions from insurance
brokerage sales were not significant so all ipsurance business operations were reported in the Insurance Franchise Business
segment and no insurance business operations were reported in the Insurance Brokerage Business segment.

Consulting and other fees earned by the Company are also an increasingly significant part of the Company's business. These
fees (finders fees, buyers assistance plan fees, gains on sales of agencies, gains on seller debt extinguishment) are typically
related to agency ownership transfers and were not previously allocated to any reportable segment. Because the Company’s
lending activities are also typically related to agency ownership transfers, these fees have been allocated to the lending
segment previously referred to as Financial Services Business and renamed as Facilitator Services Business segment.

I As a result of the changes described above, the Company’s three reportable segments as of and for the years ended December

31, 2002 and 2001 consisted of its Insurance Franchise Business, Insurance Brokerage Business and its Facilitator Services
Business.

The Insurance Franchise Business segment includes the sale of insurance on a retail basis primarily through franchise agents
in the states of Arizona, Colorado, Florida, Georgia, Iowa, Illinois, Kansas, Louisiana, Missouri, Nebraska, Nevada, New
Mexico, Oklahoma, Tennessee, Texas, and Utah. The Insurance Brokerage Buginess segment includes the sale of insurance
Ion a wholesale basis through the Company’s franchise agents and other agents not affiliated with the Company. The

Facilitator Services Business segment includes the sale of those services, such as lending and consulting, which facilitate the
transfer of insurance agency ownership.

Unallocated corporate-level expenses are reported in the reconciliation of the segment totals to the related consolidated totals
as “other corporate expenses”. Management evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates resources to them based

on the net income before income taxes. The segments’ accounting policies are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies.
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The table below reflects summarized financial information concering the Company’s reportable segments for the years
l ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Insurance Imsurance Facilitator Elimination of

Franchise Brokerage Services Intersegment Consolidated
2002 . . Business Business Business Activity Tataiy
Insurance commissions ‘ $ 27,966,137 § 2,573,606 $ — 8 — § 30,539,743
Interest income , — -— 914,137 (674,075) 240,058
Gain on sale of notes receivable — — 2,762,673 — 2,762,673

l Finders fees —_ —_ 1,589,254 — 1,589,254

Buyers Assistance Plan fees —_ — 3,954,444 — 3,954,444
Gain on sale of agencies — — 163,226 — 163,226
Gain on extinguishment of debt — — 438,706 — 438,706
Interest expense 252217 . = — — 252,217
Commissions expense 24,206,841 1,148,456 — — 25,355,297
Depreciation and amortization 446,357 53,340 305,513 — 809210
Segment assets 21,482,153 6,240,969 8,103,345 (7.471,781) 28,354,686
Expenditures for segment assets 1,641,974 114,713 —_ — 1,756,687

Insuranee Insuranes Facilitator - Elimination of

l Franchise Brokerage Services Iatersegment Consalidated
2001 - Business Business Buginess Activity Totals
Insurance commissions $ 20,895232 % — 35 — § — $ 20,895,232
Interest ncome (343,632) — 578,302 (160,076) 74,594
Gain on sale of notes receivable — —_— 507,670 — 507,670
Finders fees ‘ — — 450,000 - 430,000
Buyers Assistance Plan fees ' — — 1,589,550 —_ 1,589,550
Gain on sale of agencies — — 676,503 — 676,503
Intarest expense 169,561 —_ —_ —_ 169,561
Commissions expense 16,220,082 —_ — ’ — 16,220,082
Depreciation and amartization 382,295 — 58,319 — 440,614
Segment assets 9,341,182 — 13,527,753 (5,001,306) 17,867,629
Expenditures for segment assets - 232,790 — — -—_ 232,790
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Profit (Loss)

2002 21

Insurance Franchise profit $ 3,233,439 § 3,779,662
Insurance Brokerage profit 1,433,013 —_—
Facilitator Services profit’ 8,779,645 3,583,630
Total segment profit 13,446,097 7,363,292
Unallocated amounts:

Other income 33,793 —

Impairment loss — (162,877

Other corporate expenses (11,285,111) (6,099,369)

Loss on sale of fixed Assats — {(47,397)

Income before income taxes $ 2,196,781 § 1,053,649

11. New Accounting Standard

The FASB issued SFAS 143, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4,44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement Na. 13,
and Technical Corrections”, which is effective for the Company as of Janvary 1, 2003. This Statement eliminates an
inconsistency between the required accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and the required accounting for certain lease
modifications that have economic effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. This Statement also amends other
existing authoritative pronouncements to make various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability

under changed condifions. Management continues to evaluate the impact that adoption of SFAS 143 will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

The FASB issued SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”, which is effective for the
Company for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, This Statement addresses financial
accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF)
Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity
(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” The Company will adopt SFAS 146 for all exit or disposal activities
that are initiated after December 31, 2002. . )

The FASB issued SFAS 147, “Acquisition of Certain Financial Institutions”, which is effective for the Company for
acquisitions for which the date of acquisition is on or after October 1, 2002. This Statement remaves acquisitions of financial
institutions from the scope of both Statement 72 and Interpretation 9 and requires that those transactions be accounted for in
accordance with FASB Statements No. 141 “Business Combinations”, and No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets™.
In addition, this Statement amends FASB Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived

Assets”, to include in its scope long-term customer-relationship intangible assets and credit cardholder intangible assets, The
Company will adopt SFAS 147 accordingly.
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The FASB issued SFAS 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure”, which is effective for
the Company as of January 1, 2003. This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compeunsation”, to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based emplayee compensation. In addition, this Staternent amends the disclosure requirements of
Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of

I accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. Management
continues to evaluate the impact that adoption of SFAS 148 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

12, Related Party Information

At the request of the Company, Robert D. Orr, Leland G. Orr and Michael Hess have, in some cases, each persanally
guaranteed payment of amounts due suppliers by the Company under certain agency agreements. The amounts guaranteed
under such agency agreements vary depending on the value of premiums to be collected under such agency agreements, Mr.
O, Mr. Orr and Mr. Hess have also each personally guaranteed repayment of a $960,000 line of credit loan to First National
Bank and Trust of Phillipsburg, Kansas. No compeasation or other benefit is provided to Mr. Orr, Mr. Orr o Mr. Hess for

making personal guarantees on behalf of the Company even though the continnance of these Buarantees is important to the
Company’s prospects.

At the request of the Company, Robert Orr, Leland Orr, Michael Hess, and Shawn Lowry each personally guaranteed

Irepaymcut to Brooke Credit Corporation of a promissory note made to Austin Agency, Inc., Brownsville, Texas, for the
acquisition of an insurance agency. On December 31, 2002, the Company’s total loss exposure related to this loan was zero
because the entire loan balance of $1,036,333 was sold without recourse to an unaffiliated lender. Without Mr. Orr, M. Orr,
Mr. Hess and Mr. Lowry’s personal guarantees, Austin Agency did not qualify for credit and the Company would have

Imissed an expansion opportunity. The four guarantors have each acquired 6.25% of the outstanding stock of Austin
Agency, Inc. as consideration for their guarantees although M. Orr, Mr. Om, Mr. Hess and Mr. Lowry have stated their
intentions to return their stock to Austin Agency for cancellation as soon as their guarantees are released,

Robert D. Orr, Leland G. Orr and Michael Hess own 100% of the voting stock of GI Agency, Inc. Although GI Agency was a
franchise agent for the Company in previous years, it is not currently a franchise agent and its business operations do not
include insurance sales. On December 31, 2002, the Company’s total loss exposure refated to loans made by Brooke Credit

Corporation to GI Agency was zero because all such [oan balances, totaling $1,861,601, were sold without recourse to an
affiliated lender. '
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Robert D. Orr, Leland G. Orr and Michael Hess own a cortrolling interest in Brooke Holdings, Inc., which owned 67.1% of
the Company’s common stock on December 31, 2002. Prior to enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in July, 2002, the

lCampany had extended unsecured credit to Brooke Holdings in the total amount of $608,189 bearing interest at a rate of
9.5% per annum and maturing on December 31, 2002. Broake Holdings expects to repay, or refinance with a third party, this
credit extension by June 30, 2003.

lShawn Lowry is the sole manager of First Financial Group, L.C., a Kansas limited liability company. Michae! Lowry and
Shawn Lowty are the co-members of First Financial Group, L.C. Kyle Garst is the sole manager and sole member of
American Financial Group, L.C., a Kansas limited liability company. First Financial Group, L.C. and American Financial

IGroup, L.C. help insurance agencies qualify for credit by providing loan guarantees, typically in exchange for an ownership
interest in the insurance agency. This activity provides significant benefit to the Company by qualifying more agents for
credit. On Jupe 1, 2001, First Financial Group, L.C., guaranteed 65% of a Brooke Credit Corporation loan to Palmer, L.L.C.
of Baxter Springs, Kansas and received a 15% profit interest in Palmer, L.L.C. as consideration. The lean was originated on

l June 1, 2001 and is scheduled to mature on September 1, 2011. As of December 11, 2002, the entire loan principat balance of
$694,971 was sold to unaffiliated lenders. The Company’s exposure to loss on this loan is limited to a recourse obligation by
Brooke Credit Corporation on $427,475 of loan participation balances. On August 30, 2002, First Financial Group, L.C.
guaranteed 50% of a Brooke Credit Corporation loan to Stein and Associjates, L.L.C. of Kearney, Missouri and received a
10% profit interest in Stein and Associates, L.L.C. as consideration. The loan was originated on August 30, 2002, and is
scheduled to mature on August 15, 2014. As of December 31, 2002 the entire loan principal balance of 3547,611 was sold to
unaffiliated lenders. The Company’s exposure to loss on this loan is limited to a recourse obligation by Brooke Credit

lCorporation on $410,703 of loan participation balances. On October 13, 2001 American Financial Group, L.C. and First
Financial Group, L.C. each guaranteed 50% of a Brooke Credit Corporation loan to The Wallace Agency, L.L.C. of Wanette,
Oklahoma and each received a 7.5% profit interest in The Wallace Agency. The loan was originated on October 13, 2001 and
is scheduled to mature on January 1, 2014. As of December 31, 2002 the entire loan principal balance of $422,434 was sold

l to unaffiliated lenders. The Company’s exposure to loss on this loan is limited to a recourse obligation by Brooke Credit
Corporation on $291,530 of loan participation balances.

l © pa7




Anita Larson is married to John Arensberg, a parter in Arensberg Insurance of Overland Park, Kansas. The Company and
Arensberg Insurance have entered into a franchise agresment pursuant to which Arensberg Insurance participates in the
lCompany's master agent program. In addition, Brooke Credit Corporation has extended credit to Arensberg Insurance to
acquire an insurance agency. The loan was made on substantially the same terms and conditions as provided to other ageats
and is schedule to mature on October 1, 2009. As of December 31, 2002, the entire loan principal balance of $714,337 was
sold to unaffiliated lenders. The Company’s exposure to loss is limited to a recourse obligation by Brooke Credit
Corporation on $245,120 of loan participation balances. The Company entered into a franchise agreement and made loan
advances to Arensberg [nsurance partnership prior to Mas. Larson’s employment by the Company. Furthermore, Ms. Larson
is not a partner of Arensberg Insurance. The Company believes that the partmers of Arensberg Insurance are established and
lcrcdible businessmen and therefore believes its exposure to loss from it recourse obligation is limited.

Anita Lowry is a sister to Robert D. Orr and Leland G. Orr and the mother of Shawn Lowry and Michael Lowry and is
married to Doa Lowry. Don and Anita Lowry are shareholders of American Heritage Agency, Inc. of Hays, Kansas. The
Company and American Heritage Agency, Inc. entered into a franchise agreement on February 28, 1999 pursuant to which
American Heritage Agency, Inc. participates in the Company’s master agent program. As of December 31, 2002, Brooke
Credit Corporation had six loans outstanding to American Heritage Agency with tota! principal balances of $557,587. All
I such loans were made on substantially the same terms and conditions as provided to other agents and are scheduled to mature
on October 13, 2003, August 15, 2003, January 16, 2005, September 1, 2010, February 1, 2014 and April 1, 2014, The
Company’s exposure to loss is limited to retained principal loan balances of $4,997 because all other loan balances have been
l sold to unaffiliated lenders without recourse.

The Company sells insurance to its Board of Directors and its employees. The aggregate of these tramsactions is not
significant to the financial statements. The Company's employee handbook contains coaflict of interest guidelines which are
applicable to Company management and employees. The purpose of the guidelines is to prevent an employes in a position to
influence a decision regarding the Company to use such infizence for personal gain. Pursuant to the guidelines, an employee
in such a position is required to notify an officer of the Company of the existence of such a situation.

13. Acquisitions and Divestitures .

On June 30, 2000, the Company acquired 900 shares of Interstate Insurance Group, LTD from Gzrald Lanio and William
“Tyer, These shares represented 100% of the shares outstanding. The total purchase price was estimated to be $1,200,000 plus
Interstate’s net tangible book value. However, that portion of the purchase price exceeding net tangible book value was
contingent upon future revenues. Therefore, in accordance with paragraph 80 of APB 16, “Business Combinations”, the
purchase price was recorded as an asset when cash payments were made to the sellers. Cash payments of $300,000 and
$162,877 were recorded in 2000 and 2001, respectively, as Excess Cost of Purchased Subsidiary. As disclosed in footnote 1
(g) to these financial statements, these amounts were subsequently written off a3 impairad.
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On August 1, 2002 the Company acquired insurance agency assets operating under tlie trade-name of Bomstein Financial
roup for an initial purchase price of $200,000. The initial purchase price has been allocated to Agency Assets as discloged
footnote 1 (v). The sellers are entitled to a $400,000 increase of the initial purchase price if premiums remain at certain
inimum levels during the contingency period of March, 2003 through February, 2005. Any such purchase price increase

shall be paid to the sellers semi-annually during the contingency period and, in accordance with paragraph 80 of APB 16,
usiness Combinations ", the payment shall be recorded as an asset when made. Bornstein Financial Group sells annuities
ing a seminar based sales approach.

avidson for an initial purchase price of $2,024,816. A portion of the initial purchase price has bzen allocated to Excess Cost
F Purchased Subsidiary as disclosed in footnote 1 (g). The sellers are entitled to an increase of the initial purchase price
equal to 30% CJID & Associates monthly net revenues during the contingency period of September 1, 2003 to September 1,
&007. Any such purchase price increase shall be paid to the sellers monthly during the contingency period and, in accordance

in Tulyl, 2002, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of CID & Assaciates, L.L.C. from Colin and Julie

ith paragraph 80 of APB 16, “Business Combinations”, the payment shall be recorded as an asset when made, CJD &
ssociates, L.L.C. operates an insurance agency wholesaler under the trade name of Davidson Babcock. As an insurance

agency wholesaler, Davidson Babcock typically sells insurance policies through retail agents and not directly to consumers.
ith regards to.the acquisition of CID & Associates, L.L.C, the Company has compiled the following pro forma
ormation.

nsolidated financial statements and their related notes. The consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended
ecember 31, 2002 and 2001 labeled “Actual” arz derived from, and are qualified by reference to, the audited financial
staternents included. The consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 labeled
Pro Forma” are unsudited. The consolidated balance sheet data at December 31, 2002 and 2001 labeled “Actual” are derived
om, and are qualified by reference to, the audited financial statements included. The consolidated balance sheet data at
December 31, 2002 and 2001 labeled “Pro Forma” are unandited.

ihe following summary consolidated actual and pro forma financial information should be read in conjunction with our
0

Ifnnsolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Year Ended December 31, 2001

. Actual Pro Formy Actual Pro Forma
tperating income ’ $ 40,395273 § 42,641,650 § 24,494,137 § 27,585,452
perating expenses 37,946,275 39,548,132 23,270,947 25,658,556
Other expenses ) 252,217 191,670 169,561 235,369
come tax expense . . 746,906 986,529 338,241 575,119
ﬁet income } . 1,449,875 1,915,219 695,408 1,116,408

et income per share: '
Basic , L 1.66 2.30 91 1.52
l Diluted o 1.56 2.12 90 1.44
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash :
Accts and notes receivable, net
lOthar current agsets

Current Assets !
Net property and equipment
Other noncurrent assets

Total Assets

lAccounts payable
Premiums payable |
nearned buyer assistance fees
urrent maturities of long-term debt
Other current liabilities

Current Liabilities ;
ong-term debt ;
Other noncurrent liabilities

l Total Liabilities

Common stock
referred stock
aid in capital

Treasury stock -

gRetained deficit
otes receivabla for common stock

|
H

i

Accumulated other comprehensive incoms © -
I

l Total Liabilities and Stockholders® Equity

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

Actual Pro Forma Actuad Pro Farma
$ 72103188 7210318 $§ 4787865 § 5,175,931
9,236,545 9,236,543 7,810,688 10,016,270
5,275,322 5,275,322 1,831,262 1,858,607
21,722,185 21,722,183 14,429,819 17,050,808
2,318,938 2,318,988 649,776 754,304
4,313,513 4,313,513 2,778,034 3.917.427
3 28354686 § 2813354686 3 17,867629 § 21,722,539
$ 5181,974 § 5,181,974 § 2299366 $ 2,544,541
4,415,188 4,415,188 2,256,732 4,237,671
1,666,417 1,666,417 028,232 928,232
2,272,159 2272159 3,470,608 5,067,549
1,319,051 1,319,051 992,357 1,024,212
14,854,789 14,834,789 9,547,295 13,802,205
10,403,933 10,405,933 7,398,935 7,398,935
53,292 53,293 43260 - 42260
23,314,014 25,314,014 17,388,490 21,243,400
774,573 714,973 704,018 704,018
2,078,867 2,078,867 1,899,850 1,899,350
1,875,333 1,875,333 703,023 703,023
(39,500) (39,500) (39.500) (39,500)
(1,8468,981) (1,868,981) (2,787,370) (2,787,370)
— — (8,193) (8,193)
219.980 219,980 7,311 7311

$ 28,354,686 § 28,354,686 3

17,867,620 § 21,722 539

F-40
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14. Stock Based Compensation

'The Company’s net income and net income
b

Net income:
As reported
Pro forma

Basic earnings per share:
As reported
Pro forma

Diluted earnings per share:
As reported

. Pro forma

¢ weighted-average assurnptions used and the estimated fair value are as follows:

Expected term,
Expected stock volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Dividend

Fair value per share

-;‘?-

) per common share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated
elow if compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plan had been determined based on

for awards in accordance with the provisions of No. 123, “dccounting for Stock-Based Compensation™:

the fair value at the grant

2002

$ 1,449875

1,310,691

1.86
1.47

1.56
1.40

e fair value of the options- granted during 2002 is estimated on the date of grant using the binomial option pricing model,

2002

2.1 years

$

30%
3%
1%

5.10

ll'he Corapany has granted stock options to officers, certain key employees, and directors for the purchase of its common
tock under a shareholder-approved plan. As-of December 31, 2002, the Brooke Corporation 2001 Compensatory Stock
Option Plan authorizes .the issuance of up to 90,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, for use in paying incentive
ompensation awards in the form of stock options. Unless otherwisa required by law, the options are granted at fair value at
ﬁemdate of grant:and, except for stock options awarded to selected officers and directors, become partially exercisable
ediately. The options expire five to ten years from the date of grant. At December 31, 2002, there were 47,850 additional

shares available for granting stock options under the stock plan.

Shares Welghted

Under Averuge
Optlon Exercise Price
Qutstanding, January 1, 2002 — 3 —_
-Granted 47,500 25.00
“Exercised {800) 23.00
‘Relinquished (2,000) 27.50
‘Terminated and expired (3,350) 25.00
-" Outstanding, December 31, 2002 41,350 3§ 25.00

F-41
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No options to purchase shares were exercisable at December 31, 2002, The following table summarizes information
I conceming outstanding and exercisable options at December 31, 2002.

Optigns Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Coatractual Average Average
] . Number Life Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercisable Prices Qutstanding in Years Price Exercizable Price
$25-2750 41,350 21% 23.00 -0- % NA

On September 20, 2002, Robert D. Orr relinquished the 2,000 options granted to him by the Company’s Compensation
Committes.

15. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In June2001, the FASB issued SPAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”, collectively referred to as the “Standards,” which were effective for the Company as of January 1, 2002.
SFAS No. 141 supercedes APB No. 16, “Business Combinations." The provisions of SFAS No. 141 (1) require that the
purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, (2) provide specific
criteria for the initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets apart from goodwill, and (3) required that un-
amortized negative goodwill be written off immediately as an extraordinary gain instead of being deferred and amortized.
SFAS No. 141 also requires that, upen adoption of SFAS No, 142, the Company reclassify the carrying amounts of certain
intangible assets into or out of goodwill, based on certain criteria. SFAS No. 142 supercedes APB No. 17, “Intangible
dssets,” and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. SFAS No. 142 primarily addresses the
accounting for goodwill and intangible assets subsequent to their initial recognition. The provisions of SFAS No. 142
(1) prohibit the amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibie assets, (2) require that goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets be tested annually for impairment (and in iaterim periods if certain events occur indicating that the camying
value of goadwill and/or indefinite-lived intangible assets may be impaired), (3) require that reporting units be identified for

l_the .purpose of assessing potential future impairments of goodwill, and (4) remove the forty-year limitation on the
amortization period of intangille assets that have finitz lives. ' ' '

The following table adjusts reported net income and earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2001 (prior to the
adoption date) to exclude amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives:

Net Income Basic EPS Diluted EPS
-Ag reported - . $ 6954088 013 .00
" Amortization 6f goodwil! 23,780 - .00 .00

_ 3 499,188 § 91 § 90
IThere"a'ré 1o intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, as of December 31, 2002, and December 31, 2001. The intangible
assets with finite useful lives have a value of $2,303,691 and §7 19,611 as of December 31, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
ese assets are included in “Other Assets” in the balance sheet. Amortization expense was $195,006 and $137,348 for the
ears ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectivaly,
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6. Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Supplemental disclosures:

HE N ._ ..

Cash paid for interest $ 725569 $ 309,781
Cash pﬁid for income tax 3 — 8 —
Non cash financing activity--additional paid in capital for

I contributed services $ 30,000 $ 30,000

During the year ending December 31, 2002, the statement of cash flows reflect the purchase of agencies into inventory

taling $7,083,787 and the sale of agencies from inventory totaling $12,400,359. Agency inventory decreased $464,617

tom the December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002, however net cash of $3,316,572 was provided by the Company’s agency
inventory activities because $4,851,955 of the purchase price of agency inventory was provided by sellers per table below.

. 2002 2001
l Purchase of insurance agency inventory $ (7,083,787) $ (3,040,293)
Sale of insurance agency inveatory 12,400,359 6,546,571
Net cash provided from sale of agency inventory 5,316,572 3,506,278
I Cash provided by sellers of agency inventory . {4,851,953)  {4,057,078)
(Increase) Decrease in inventory oa balance sheet $ 464,617 § (530,800

l7. Subsequent Evenis

Durmg the first quarter of 2003, CID & Associates, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, incorporated The DB
roup, LTD in the country of Bennuda as & captive insurance company for the purpose of underwriting, as a reingurer, a
mall portion of the imsurance writtsn by its agents. During the first quarter of 2003, CJD & Associates, LLC also

incorporated DB Indemnity, LTD i the country of Bermuda as a captive insurance company for the purpose of msuring a
ortion of the professional (errors and omissions) liability exposure of the Company’s agents.

uring the first quarter of 2003, the Company’s board declared a six-for-one stock split on its outstanding common stock

(five new shares to be issued for each share held) to be effected in the form of a dividend to stockholders of record on March

, 2003, This dividend was in addition to quarteriy cash common stock dividends payable to holders of record on February
is, 2003 and quarterly cash preferred stock dividends payable to holders of record on March 31, 2003.

During the first quarter of 2003, the Company’s board also authorized the designation, issuance and sale of 200,000 shares of

e Company’s preferred stock at a price of $50 per share, dividend rate not to exceed tzn percent (10%) per annum, and the

ight to convert one share of preferred stock for five shares of commoan stock (after stock dividend dilution) prior to April 15,
2004, '
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During the first quarter of 2003, the Company’s finance company subsidiary Brooke Credit Corporation, through its wholly
owned special purpose entity Brooke Acceptance Company LLC, commenced an offering of securities through a new loan

| participation program. Through this program, securities are offered in increments of $150,000 to financial institutions, in a
pool of commercial credits with outstanding principal balances totaling approximately $16.1 million. IF the Company's
offering is successful, the securities will carry a Single “A™ Rating from Standard and Poor's Rating Agency.

As of this date, the Coinpzmy has issued additional unsecured debentures to the public in the first quarter of 2003 totaling
$1,359,000 ($369,000 Series A and $990,000 Series B).

I During the first quarter of 2003, the Company expanded the autonomy znd redefined the operations of its three primary
subsidiaries, Brooke Franchise Corporation, Brooke Credit Corporation and CJD & Associates, LLC. New members were
elected to the board of directors of the three primary subsidiaries and new officers appointed. With a single exception, the
new board members and new officers of the primary subsidiaries do not also serve as board members or officers of the

l Company or another primary subsidiary. In an associated event, during the first quarter of 2003, the Company executed
written agreements that assigned franchise fees and other such revenues to one of its primary subsidiaries, Brooke Franchise

l Corporation, as of December 31, 2002 for certain franchise agreements entered inta by the Company prior to the date that the

written agreement was executed. In consideration of this assignment, Brooke Franchise Carporation agreed to perform thass
services required pursuant to all such franchise agreements.

During the first quarter of 2003, the Company consummated insurance agency inventory purchases and sales as the resnit of
purchase and sale agreements entered into on or before December 31, 2002. Pursuant to the terms of these agreements to
acquire insurance agencies, the Company has or may incur additional liabilities to sellers in the Frst quarter of 2003 of $
426,500

18. Prior Period Adjustment

commissions due to producers in order to better match commission revenues with corresponding commission expenses by
estimating the amount of commissions due producers at each period end based on historical commission payment rates. This.
-prior period adjustment results in a $797,277 reduction in retained earnings at December 31, 2001, Retained earnings for
December 31,2001 were reduced from ($2,452,773) to (83,250,050) as the result of accruing for a $1,207,995 producer
I expense payable and correspondingly increasing the deferred tax asset by $410,718 as of December 3 1, 2000. Aay such
adjustment for additional commission expense in 2001 was not material and therefore 2001 earnings were not affected hy this
adjustment. The amount of corresponding additional commission expense was recerded in the years of 2000 and prior. -
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The Company has also recorded prior period adjustments for the periods cndcd March 31, 2002, June 30, 2002 and

icptemher 30, 2002 to accrue & payable for commissions due to producers. The effect of these adjustmeuts is recapped as
ollows:

0373172002 06302002 09/30/2002 03/31/2002 06/30/2002 09/30/2002
) Retained Retained Retalned Net Net Net
l N — Earnings Earnings Earuings Income Income Income
1 previously reported - § (1,538,343} % (1,325,966)$ (1,175,563) $ 557480 § 865,161 § 1,181,619
Change in accounting for . : e
producer expeiise acerual (1,207,995)  (1,443,843)  (1,794,292) 0 (253,316) (586,297)
for period adjustments affect . :
on deferred tax assets 410,718 490,907 610,039 0 36,127 199341
IU adjusted $ (2,335.620)8 (2,278,902)§ (2,359,796) § 557480 § 697,972 § 794,663
. 03/31/2002 06/30/2002 09/30/2002
03/31/2002 06/3072002 09/30/2002 Diluted Diluted Diluted
Earnings Earnings Earnings Earn Earn Per Earn
l . Per Share . Per Share Per Share Per Share Share . Per Share
3 previously reported 5 Jr s 1.03 § 137 § G458 55 8 '1.30
Changg in accounting for - ,
producer expense accrual ’ 0 (.35) (.79) 0 (31) (.70)
I’rior period adjustments _
affect on deferred tax _ )
.asgety = 0 .13 27 0 A1 24
3 adjusted - 8 718 81 8 85 § 645 .798 .84
19. Reclassifications

ertain accounts in the prior year financial statements have been rec]asmﬁed for comparative purpnses to conform with the
resentanon in the cuurent year financial statements.

I ) ’ F45




BROOKE CORPORATION

Consolidated Financial Statements

: I.'EAR.S‘ENDED DECEMBER 3]. 2001 AND 2000

o S S Summers, Spencer &

- KA Cavanaugh, CPAs Chartered

. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS




’ B’rab[éé‘(’orpémiﬁéﬁé S
Consolidated Financial' Statemenrs-
o . Years Ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
Contents |

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT - ) B : S 2

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . ' : ‘ 3
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS uuiiuumunsesrsssasscessssisssessssassssshosseseesssasesensesesssiessessasmsesssrsmmsessosessesssoseeee o [ERTv— 4-5
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OFINCOME .............. .

" CONSOLIDATED STATEMEm's OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY wevtumrnsnsesnesessesssesssseostesssesssssmmssncson o
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS o ercvcecrssserssmseesosanesserevees oo seeemeeseesssmmsesssseeseeeeseeseses oo 8
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1. X.eovsvssssescosscmseersoemsssssssssos s soes oo 9-38

E:-aoke C‘urﬁaraﬁan " !




: : : ey PICLLIUE : o " 3413 5 19h, Topeka, Kansus 666 [4
EL_)"" LLuLJubj:uz L)PGLJ_UCL CX.',, Sl e T Voice 783.272:4484, Fm;_'[ﬁ;_l‘[i_‘fgqé
. ,C CaVﬂﬂauCPAS, : A efed‘ 1811 Wakarusa Dr., Ste. 100, Lawrancs, Kan;ﬁa 66047

- - . Voica 785.838.4484, Fax 785.838.40:
lR.Tl’FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS e 4, Fax 7858384040

- 36735 74th, Ste. 3, Meridan, Kansas 66512
Voica 783.484.2517, Fax 785.484.2543

http:f!ww{av.ssccpas.cum

. Email - sscataff @ ssecpas.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT . -

o !
To the Board of Directors '

Brooke Corparation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated halance sheets of _

. ‘ BROOKE CORPORATION .
8s of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of incbme!. changes in stockholders’.
equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements -are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur respansibility is to express an opinian on these financial statements based on our

- We conducted our audits in accordance with suditing standards generally adcepted in the United States of
America. These standards require that we plan

whetherthe financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 8 test basis;
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the
‘gecounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statemant presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasanshble basis far our apinjon. '

In our npinioﬁ, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,

. 3 =]
States of America, e .

As discussed in Note 17 and 18 to the fin
. by management during the current year, Ag
&IFOTS. :

.')/»""""*'*f'/ 5&%%W”€KM -.

Summers, Spencer & Cavanaugh, CPAs, Chartered
_Topeka, Kansas
March 1, 2002

(except for Note 17 and 18 as to which the date is August 8, 2002)

ancial statements, certain errorg previously reported were discovered
cordingly, the financial statements have besn restated to correct the
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Brooke Corporation:
¢ éiisalirlute_d Bulunce Sheets

DECEMHER 1/ .' 2001 ann 2000

ASSETS

- , _ 2001 2000
Current Assets . .

Cash : 3 4787869 . I 1.6831,512
Accounts and hates r:r:alvablc net 7.810,688 1,704,817
Note receivable, parent cumpany 437,668 L 318,743
Other receivables 879,072 . 196,928
- Securities ) o 1,188 © - 1,198
Intarest—only strip receivab le : ‘ 184 412- -
Pre:pmd expenses . 328,912 147,642
" Total Curvent dssets _ (4429,819 . - '5052.843
Investment In Agencies ' : 867,320 ' 316:520

Property and Equipmeut T o
Cast . . ' 2,402,101 2,267,095
Lesa: Accumulat:d deprcctauon R (1.752,32%) (1,585,446)
Ner P: ‘aperty and E_qu!pme_n; . 649,776 701,649
’ Other Agsets ' ' ' :
: Excess of cost nver fair value uf net assets 802,848 574,328
Less: Accuomlated emortization (2553,46D) (176,029)
. Prepaid commission gusrantee . _ 28,200 #8.048
- Covenants not to competz - . . - ’ 14,696
. .Goodwill - ) ’ 1.284 5,084
"+ Prepaid finders fee 14,340 ] 14,847
Contvact database . 39,692 42,528
Servicing asget ) S 293,276 -
-Deferred charges ' ' - 44 584
" Deferred tax asset = ' 495,825 8354.066
Net Odter.Asser.s' ~ 1509,996 1,444.130
; . Total Aisets ' 5 174356911 5 7,515,142

See accampanving sumnasy of accounting policies und nwsies 1 Jinanciad seaiements,



" Broak"gt'dr’j;bf@z’tibﬁ _
Consoliduted Balunce Sheets .

DecemBER 31, 2001 anny 2000

LIABILITIES AND STOCKEOLDERS' EQUITY

: 2001 2000
Current Liabilitles : - : . ' : .
.. Accounts payahle - © ° S § 1,091,371 -5 442,680
Premiums payable ta insurancs companies 2,256,732 1,966,893
Unzamed buyer assistance plan fees- 928.232. N
Accrued commission refunds . . 196,842 233 546
Short term debt . 693,513 . 836,539
. Current maturities of long-term debt 3,470,608 1,334,651
Toral Current Liabilities 8,739,300 4,804,311
Non-current Llabilities
Servicing liability 43,2360 e -
Lnng-’[‘crm debt ]ess current maturities 7,398,935. 3,336,764
Tutal Liabllities : 16,180,495 8,141,005
Stuckholders Equity -
Common stack, $1 par value, 9 500 000 shares
authorized, 704 018 shares lssued and 692,968 shﬂres . 704,018 704,018
ourstanding ' ’
‘Preferred stock, $75 par value, 1,000 shares . : i
authorized, 781 shares xssued and oufstanding 58,600 58,600
- Preferred stock, $25 par value, 499,000 shares ’ .
. autherized, 73,650 shares issued and outstanding. . 1,841,250 -
- ‘Less: Treasury stack, 11,050 shares at cost (39,500} - (39,500).
“Naies teceivable for common stack {8,193) -
" - Additional paid-in capital 703,023 1,103,702
. Retained earningy {(1.990,093) . (2,432,773)
. 'Accumulated other cump:eh:nsw: income 7,311 -
Total Stockholders! Equity 1,276,416 {623.931)
- Tatal Liabilities and Stockhalders® Equity 17.456,911 I 7515142

- - n . . . .., .

“See wccompanying sumnin of accounting policies aid nows 1o financial sintements,
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Consolidated Statemeants of Tncome
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

‘Operntlag Incomé
Insurance commissiang
- Interest incoms (net)

2001

5 20,895,232

I}

004

e

§ 13,751,080

418,246 . 289,190
Findar'y fes . 450,000 -
Gain on sale of agencies - 676.503 17,504
Buyer asgistance plan fees 1,589,550 -
Loss on sale of fixed asaets (47,397) -
Other income ' 4.333 -
Gain on sale of notes receivable 307,670 -
Total Operating fncome 24,494,157 14,057,770
" Operating Expenses _ _ '
Cummisaiqns cxpense -’ 1.6.220.082 9,489,111
Payroll expensa 4,112,648 1757.550
Depreciation and amartization 440,614 405,735
- ‘Other operating expenses 1,991,054 _ 1,458,712
-Impairment loss - ‘ 162,877 300,000
Bond interest expanse © 343,672 134,241
" Towd Operating Experises . 23,270,947 14,595,369
. Income (Loss) from Operations 12237210 (537.599)
Other Expensey .
Inter:at‘cxpem: 169,361 200,731
" Total Other Expenses -169,561 200,731
" Income (Loss) Before Income Takes 1,053,649 (738,330)
Income tax expense (benefit) 358.241. {251,032)
Net Income (Lass) 695,408 $ {487,208
- Net Income (Loss) per Slu_lre:
Basic 91 (.71)
Diluted .80 (.69)
- Sew ur.-cmnﬁa.fi_rin & sumntary of uccounting policies and notes 1o JSinancial siatenents. g
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, Broolfe Carporatrorz _ :
C‘ansolzdated Statements af Changes. in Stockhiolders ' Eqwn'
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

il

Aneitmtuludenl
: . Mates . Qiher
Cammon  Preferred  Tressery  Hecebvabla far Add" Pald- Retained  Comprehensive
Stuek Stuch - Stuek Comman Stack  fu Capltal Earuiuys lneome Tutni
Balaices, Dezember 31, 5 T04DI8°S 8600 5 (30.300) § - - 31083702 §(1,791833) & < 5 (Tuiy
1999 . .
Dividends paid (174.637) 71,637
Fuir market value of cantributed services _ . - 40400 40,01
Met (o83 {487.298) {447 .208)
Bulance, Decewber 31, 7040187 SBSI0 | (930 - .. M@0 4527 - 1625953

2000 . ] , .

' Dividends paid e ! ¢ (232,728) (232,728
Prefered stnck lssued 1.841,250 1841250
Fair mukes voluk of conributed dervices - ot 40,000 40000
Loans for common stack fssuarice - - o (2193) 13,193
- Deferred charges o e . (340,679) C AS0.679)
C‘umprr.hmslv: fneoma: )

tnlm:sl—anly strip receivable. faiy mnriu:l value . 7311 7311

‘ Ne;!ncum: - 603308 693,408

'.ﬂa!aum, December 31, | 5 704,018 51859350 ~ 5 (39300) § (8.1937 § 703021 5199009 § 7311 % 13704te

. . . . . , . . . .

See accompunying swmmary of uceounting policies umd notes 1 financiol stutements.



Braoke Carpararmn

C onsohdczted Statements of C sk £ laws
I’EAR.S‘ENDED Dgcemaer 31, 2001 AND 2000

" . : ] 2001 200
Cash Mlaws from vperatog oetlvitles:
!';lur Income {laux) 5 U ANy 3 I3y
Adjuutmenl: to reconells net Incume {losy) ta -
uet eash flows from uperntluu activiteg; .
Depreciution 241,167 5809
Amortization ) . ‘ 199,447 120,126
Fuir market value of cunn'ihutzd services - , . . 40,000 40,000
{Guin) logs an sate of Inventory - : i {676,503} {17300
Defarred incpme tux expenss theneflt) . . 358241 {331,030y
Impairment loss ) . . 162,877 ° 00400
{Gain) loss on sals af fixed gssats - . . : . 47347 -
Guin on solz of noteg receivabla . : . (507,670} -
{Incrense) Hscraase In assag; . : .
Accounts end notes recefvehles, net” - : - (5,224,794) (11477313
Other recaivables " . {682,144) 67,924
. Prepuid expenses . ., . (18821 {139,083}
Incrense (decranss) in labilites: o o
Actounis snd expenses poyshla T ’ . 648,691 {199,218
Other: fiubilitiea | - ) o 1,281,343 {443,428
.Nel cash nser! in operathg a:-'foiar ) . {31.397.808) 1332.371)
.Cash Hows from lavesting setivitieg: . ..
Cush poyments for property und'equipment . . (232.450) {4n4.147)
- Purchuse o’ ingurunee ogeney inventary - . . {3.040,393) 141 314B3)
" Hule of Insuranue agency inventory . 6.546,531 {33,060
Ner cush provided by (used In) Im-m‘mg acifvitfes - ] . 12731.488 1664,1133)
Canh ﬂnws from ﬂnunclng nr:tlvltlzs . .
Deferred charges - | o - (440,079) -
Dividends paid ’ ~ (231,723} 1171,43)
. Cash proceads fram bond lssuones . 4,360,000 _133,000
- Caosh proczsds from preferred smck lssuancs .. - 1,841,250 -
" Payments on band moturitiey | : - 168,000 - -
Line of credit edvence ’ . 9a00o0 660,000
- Advances on short-term hormowing . 778004 A3491.568
.~ Puyments on short-term barrawing ) (909,088) 1487.223)
.. Advances on Jung-term debt T . u 0107137
" Payments un long-term debt . . (2,368,141 (339075
“Nat cash provided by finaueing acrhiiles : ' 3428670 nan
"Met Incrense (decreose) In eash and cash equivalents 3,104 336 {219.832)
- Cash ond cosh equivalenty, heglantug ol perlad 1.683,311 [.9012,343
_Cash and cash eyulvalenty, end of perlod ' 3 4787309 5 1L6H351)
See uccompunying simimary of accounting policies and nates 1o Sinancial staements, §



_ Braake C'orpamrmrf P
Notes to C auso!zrlared Finaneial .Stzm,ment.s

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 anD 2000

o, .‘S.ummzu"y of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Orgam‘.atwn

Broole Corparat:un wag mcorpurated undér the laws of the State of Kanaas on January 17, 1986, The

- Company’s registered offices are located in Phillipsburg, Kansas, Braoke Holdmgs Ine. owng 73.84% of the

Company’s common stock. The Company recruits fully vested franchise agents to sell insurance and
financial services. Most of the Company's revenues result from the sale of property and casualty ‘insurance,

" however, the Corhpany also offers life and health insurance services, investment services and cradit services.

- All of the Company’s subsidiaries are 100% owned end controlled by the Company. With the natable

exceptions of Broolee Credit Corporation, The American Agency, Inc., and American Heritage, Inc., all of the
Company’s subsidiaries are held primarily for regulatory licensing and imsurance campany contractm;;. ,

purposes. Other than Brooke Credit Corporation and Brooke Bancshares, Inc., the subsidiaries’ financial
statements are not separately. prepared. Brooke Credit Corporatmn a Ka.nsas corporatlon is, a licensed
finance cornpany that originates loans. primarily to the Company’s agents. "Separate financial statements are

regularly prepared for Brooke Credit Carporation, and Broake Credit Corporatlcn borrows maney in its awn
right pnmanly through the issuance of bcmds

_ T'hc Cumpany ] other subsuhanes includa: -

.- Brooke Life and Health Inc., isa hccnsed insurance accncy that sells life and health i insurancs thraugh the

Company’'s network of ﬁ‘anGhJSE agents, subagents and insurance pruducers

" .Brooke Agency, Inc isa Ilccnsed msurance agency that sells property and casuvalty insurance through the
- Company's netwark of tranchise agents, subagents and insurance groducers.

" ‘Brooke Investments, Inc., may offer insurance annuities and motual funds for sale through the Company's
" network of franchise agents, subagents and insurance producers. ' Brooke Investments, Inc. will determine

.whether registration as a broker-dealer is required and will register, if requu-ed bcmrr: 1nve<rme.nt services
“and securities are offered

_Interstate Insurance Group, LTD, is a licensed nsurance agency that sells insurance programs and “targeted

market” policies through the Company’s network of agents and through agents not necessarily ai'ﬁhated with

‘the Company under the frade name of American Interstate Insurance Agency.

.The American Agency, Inc., consults with agent sellers and brokers' agency sales under the trade name of
* Agency Business Brokers. This subsidiary is also a licensed insurance agency that sells insurance programs

and “targeted marlket” policies through the Company's network of agents and through agents not necessarily
affiliated with the Company under the trade name of Amerlcarl Insurance Agency.

The Americun Heritage, Inc., ccmsults with and otherwise nssists agent buyers under the trade name of
Heritage Agency Consultants. This subsidiary is alsa a licensed insurance agency that sells insurance

programs and “targeted market™ palicies through the Company's network of agents and through ayents naot
necessarily affiliated with the Company undcr the trade name of American Heritage Insurance Agency.

Brovke Corporation ’ . y



' Brooke Corporation.”
Nates to Consolidated Financiul Shutements

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000
1.. . Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (dont.)

Brooke. Corporation of Nevada, is a licensed Nevada insurance agency that sells insurance thraugh the -
- Company's netwark of franchise agents, subagents and -insurance producers. This subsidiary may also sell

the programs and “targeted market" policies in Nevada through the Company's network of agents and through -
agents not necessarily affiliated with the Company. - - : '

Brooke Bancshares, Inc. was incorporated in January of 2002 for the specific purpose of acquiring and

owning one or more commercial banks that will distribute banking services and products through the

. Company’s agents. If the Company is successful acquiring a bank, this subsidiary will become a bank
halding company as defined pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, a3 amended. .

First Brooks Insurance and Financial Services, Inc., is a Texas corporatian controlled through a contractual

~ agreement with stockholders. The corporation is used for licénéing'pumoses. The corporation is consolidated
‘with Brooke Carporation for financial statement reporting. . '

{b) Use of Accounting Estimates

* The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets, labilities
and disclosures. Accordingly, the actual amounts could differ from thoge estimates. Any adjistments appliad
. to estimated amounts are recagnized in the year in which such adjustments are determined. o

The following are significant estimates made by management: sccrued commission refund ohligations,
reimbursement from agents for commissian ‘refind obligations, Buyers Assistance Program uneamed and
- earned percentages, and the fair valus assumptions utilized for interest-only strip receivables. It is at jeast

reasonably possible these estimates will change in the near term.

(¢) Cash Equivalents , . :
. For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all cash on hand, cash in banks and
short-term investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

{d) . Allowance for Bad Debts

. The Company considers all acconnts and notes recejvable to belf'uﬂy collectible, therefore no allowance has
* -been recognized for uncallectible amaunts.

L)

- (e). Revenue Recognition
' Commission revenue on insurance policy premiums is generally recognized as of the effective date of the
~ policies or, in certain cases, as of the effective date or billing date, whichever is later. Contingent and profit

sharing commissions ere generally recognized when received. Premiums due from the insured to the

Company are reported as assets of the Company and as corresponding liabilities, net of commissions. to the
insurance carriers.

Brooke Corparation i 1
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Brooke Corporation: - o
Notes to Consoliduted Financiul Statements

YE4RS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 anD 2000,

1. . ' Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cu‘h't.)-
fe} - Revenite Recognition (cont.) _

In the event of cancellation or reduction in premiums, for policies billad by an insurance carrier, a percentage
of the commission revenue is often retumed to the insurance carrier. ‘The commission refunds are talculated
~ by the insurance carriers and are typically deducted from amounts due.td the Campeny from insurance

carriers. The Company has estimated and acerued: a liability for commission refunds of $296.842 and
5233,566 as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. '

The Cormpany provides consulting, marketing and cash flow assistance to agency owners during the first year -
of agency awnership through a Buyers Assistange Plan ("BAP"} program. The Campany has allocated the
fees paid by agents for BAP assistance to each of the services provided by the Company and the tee
associated with a particular service i recognized as revenue when the service is performed. Many of the BAP
. ervices (inspection reparts, operations analysis, marketing plan 'developmsnt) are provided by the Company
. before, ar within thirty days after, agency acquisition so approximately 58% of BAP fees are immediately
... recognized as revenue. An additional 20% of BAP fees are tecognized during the first vear of agency
-+ ownership leaving approximately 22% of BAP fees unearned, and the revenue recognized, affer the BAP

- period expires. The ailocation of fees may change if the natiure, or timing, of BAP related services change.
- Unearned BAF fees were $928,232 at Dacember 31, 2001, : :

()" Property und Egitipment

Depreciable assets are stated at cost lass accumuiated depreciation. Depreciation is cHarged to expense uging
 the straight-line methiod over the estimated usefil livés of the assets. . '

. (é} Excess Cost of Purchased Subsidiary

Included in other assets are unamortized costs of purcha'sed'subsidiaries (Brooke Life and Health, Inc. and
. The American Agency, Inc.) in excess of the fajr value of underlying wet tangible assets acquired. The
.-balance is being amortized over a 13- year period using an accelerated 150%, declining balance switching to

straight-line method. Amortization expense was §199,447 and $120,126 for the years ended December 3 1,
2001 and 2000, respectively, The “excess cast of purchased subsidiary™ resulted from the purchase of a
subsidiary corporation. In 2001, management elested ta reclassify Investment in Agencies of $316,520 to this.
- account because management’s intention is no longer to sell the agencies. These agencies, primarily
" cansisting of an agency doing businsss as Brooke Life/Health, were not amoartized when available-for sale
- during 2000 because commissions increased significantly during this period of time resulting in an increased
*_market value. Therefore, in management’s opinion, if the assets had been sald during 2000, the sales price

~ ‘would have been significantly more than the asset account balance ot $316,520. O

In the third and foufth quarters of 2000, Interstate Insurance Group, LTD's primary supplier began exiting the
 limousine insurance market, which comprised virtually all of Interstate's insurancs business, and revenues
began decreasing. Based on these circumstances, revenue and cash flaw projections were revised, résulting in
the recounition of impeirment losses in the Interstate unit of the insurance agency business seyment of
-£300.000 and $162,877, in 2000 and 2001, respectively, The amount of the Interstate impairment losses
corresponds to the amounts recorded as Excess Cost of Purchased Subsidiary as disclosed in footnota #15.

Brooke Corporation ' H



 Brooke Corporation’ |
- Notes to C.'orisol;'dared Financiul Statements
YEARS ENDED DECENMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

L' Summiry of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)
(h) Income Tu-xe.s' -

Income taxes are provided for the tax effect of transactions reported in the financial statzments and consist af°
taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related to net operating loss carrytorwards that arz available to offser

- future taxable income. . The company files its federal income tax return on a consolidated besis with its

subsidiaries. . , ‘

i) Investment in Agencies

The assets included in the “Investment m Agencies™ categary is the purchase price peid for agency assets.
These assets are availabla for sale and are carried at the lower of cost or market. In 2001, management
elected to reclassify Investment in Agencies of $316,520 to other assets because management's intention is no
longer to sell the agencies. These agencies, primarily consisting of an agency doing business as Brooke
Life/Health, were not amortized when' available for sale during 2000 because commissions ‘increased
significantly during this periad of time resulting in An increased market.value. This assumption of increased

- value is supparted by valuation methads generally sccepted by the insurance agency industry whereby agency
" assets are valued as a multiple of annusl commissions. Therefore, in management's opinion, if the assets had
. been sold during 2000, the sales prics would have been significantly mare than the assat account balance of

$316.520.

~ The Company acqufr_es in_simmce agencies to hold in inventory for sale to its agents. The number of agencies
-purchased for. this purpose in 2001, 2000 and 1999 was 23, 16 and 5, respectively. Correspondingly the

number of agencies sold fram inventory. in 2001, 2000, and 1999.was 21, 16 and 3, respectively.

- The balance at December 31, 2001 consists of two agencies. An agency in Kearney, Missourd was purchased

at a cost 0f $272.374 and an agency in Dallas, Texas at a cost of 8594 446.

(i)  Guin or Loss on Sale of dssers .
MInvestment in Agencies" gains or losses are the difference between the insurance agency sales price and the -

insurance agency's boak value, which is carried at the lower of cost or market value. surancs agericies are
typically sold in the same units.as purchased, However, in instances where a part, or segment, of an insurance
agency unit is sold, then management estimates the fair market value of the segment of the insurance agency
unit being sold and the difference betwesn the sales price and the resulting fair market value estimation is the
amount of the gain or loss. Any such fair market value estimation is evaluated for reasonableness by
comparing the market value estimation of the segment to the boak value for the entire insurance agency umnit.
Fair market value estimations are based on comparable sales information that takes into consideration agency
cheracteristics such as customer type, customer account size, supplier size end billing methods.

. (k) Contracts Database

This asset consists of standardized loen d;:\cumcnts which have been developed by Brooke Corporation.

"These contracts are available for sale to others that make thege types of loans, by first purchasing a license

from Broake Corporation. A complete review and revision ig scheduled for all loan documents every five
- years, therefore, the asset is being amortized aver a five year period. '

(l}-  Deferred Charges

Deferred charges relates to costs assaciated with the public offering of prefer‘r"ed stock and bonds. Selling
expenses, auditor fees, legat costs and filing charges associated with the Company's public offering of stock
totaled 3440,679 and have been offser against stock prdcezds. Similar costs associatad with the Company's

" public offering of bonds totaled $291,371 and are classified ag prepaid expenses that are amortized over a

period ending at bond maturity. Net of emortization, the balance of all such prepaid expenses as of December
31,2001 was $237.800. :

Brooke Carpararinn ' {12




' Brooke Corporation:
Notes ta Consolidated Finuncial Statements

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND _?qr)n

1. ‘Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

(m) Equiny Rights and Privileges 5
Convertible prefemed stockholders shall be entitled to a 9% cumulative dividend in cash of the liquidation

value of such stock per share per annum, as determined by the Board of Directars.. C onvertible praferred
" stack.may convert to common stock at a rate of 13 shares of common stock for | share of preferred stock,
_Convertible preferred stack has no voting rights. Holders of convertible preferred stock, upan liquidetion or

dissolution of the Company, are entitled to be peid an amount equal to §73 for each share of preferred stock
not converted into commeon stock before eny amount may be paid to holders of common stock. In addition to
the convertible preferred stock, the Contpany is authorized to issue 499,000 shares of preferred stock. The

“euthorized shares consist of 100,000 shares of 2002 convertible preferred stock and 399,000 shares of

“undesignated” preferred atocle. The holders of the 2002 convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive a

. cumulative dividend in cash-at the rate of 10% of the liquidation value of such stack per share per annum if-

determined by the Board of Directors. On or prior to April 1, 2002, the holders of 2002 convertible preferred
stock have the right, at their option; to convert their shares to common stock; one share of 2002 convertible .
preferred stock will be exchanged for one share of common stock. In the case of liquidation or dissolution of

- the Company, the holders of the 2002 convertible preferred stack shall be entitled to be paid in full the

liquidation value, $25 per share, after payment of full liquidation value to the holders of converthble preferred

‘stock and before the holders of common stock. The common stackholders shall possess all rights and

-privileges afforded to capital stock by law, subject to holders of convertible praferred stock.
* fn})  Per Share Data ’ C - '

Basic net income per share is calculated by dividing net inicome, less preferred stock dividends declared in the

]

" period (whether or not paid)-and the dividends accumulated for the period on cumulative preferred stock

L

. Basie Earnings l;er Share

~ Less: Preferred Stock Dividends

. Common Stock Shares ) . 704,018

Mef Incame 5

" {whether or riot eamned), by the average number of shares of the Compeny's common stock outstanding.
- Diluted net income per share is calculated by including the probable conversion af preferred stock to common

stock, and then dividing net income by the adjusted average number of shares of the Company's common

' stock outstanding. Preferred stock dividends declared during the periods endad December 3 1,-2001 snd 2000°
‘were $66,381 and 85,276, respectively. - ‘ : - '

b
=

01

b

=
{ =)

0

Met Income :

B

695,408 T 5 (487,98
{6G6381) S 1337}
429,077 T 1492.374)

=]

Incame Availabla to Comman Stackholders

Eq
s

Lass: Treasure Stock Shares’ ' (11,050 697,968 693 968

Basic Earnings Per Share - 5- - 5 ST N A

Dituted Earnings Per Share

[N ]
=

o
695,408 S (487,8)

b
=
(=]
=]

|

Cammon Stocl: Sheares - ' Jod.018
Less: Treusure Stock Shares . {10500

- Plus: Shures from Assumed Conversions

781 Shures of 875 purat (310 | ' _ © HLESR

73,630 Shurcs of $25ur L to | 73,031 776,771 03,121

Biluted Earnings Per Share S A 5 i)
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-available for sale and are carried at the lower of cost or ma
.~ receivable balances are classified as an operating activity.

(1) Other Raceivable ‘ .

_ Broole €orporation:
- Notes to Consolidated Financiul Statements

. YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000)
1. Sumimary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

(0) - Buver Assistance Plan

The Company introduced a specialty program (buyer assistance ‘plan) to provide agency buyers assistance
with their new agency ownership. The Compeny assists new agency owners by providing an inspection
report an their new agency, marketing assistance, and commission-cash flow assistance. Most of the service
provided by the Company is performed in the early stages of agency ownership, however, there is a partion of

“ongoing" service for the first year. Uneamed buyer assistance plan fees are $928,232 at December 31,2001..

(p) Principles of Consolidation : ‘

The -consolidated financiel statements include the ‘accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and fransactions have been eliminated in consolidation of the financial
statements, : ' ' "

(q) Accounts and Notes Raceivable, Net

The net notes receivable included as part of the “Accounts and Notes Receivable, Net" asst category are

rket. Accordingly, any changes in the net notes

- Incliaded in this category is reimbursements due from apents for po'ssibie cancellation of pol}dics. gdvances of

.. commission to agents, receivable from seller on contract of services and advances to vendors on behaif of
- franchise agents” Most of these. amounts are colle

‘amounts are coliected within 12 months from date of recarding,

cted within 30 days from beomqwers or agents and all

Braoke Corporugion 14



Brooke Corporation:
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2001 anp 2000

2. 'Notes Rgpeivah!e

' At De-cemlier 31,2001 and 2000, nates receivahle consist of the following:

2001 2008

Ageacyloans = . . . S L $ 37.712.93:7- | ' s 21,075.143
Less: Agency loaa participation - ' . (34.699,056) (20,897,316)
. Equipmentloans - : e 1,027
Less: Equipment loan participation l (1,927) {1.927)
 Consumer loans - . . .. 228605 C 173,745
- Less: Consumer loan partic.ipntiun_. : ' (220,412) (173,745)
Total notes réceivable, net . | - 3,021,174 177.827
Iﬁﬁﬁ:st cam:d;:ot collected dn ﬁotaa " o - 461,970 | 155,638

‘ Clistdmer feqeivahles- a - L o 4,327,544 ’ 2,331,352
k Total acn:t_:;imts an_d.nuu-:s r:;:ivable,‘ net . $ 7,910,688 '. . $ 2704817

¥ The Company has recorded a corresponding liability for interest payable to participating lenders i the
- -amounts of $384,046 and $376,966 in 2001 and 2000 respectively. - ' '

" Lden participation represents the: transfer of notes receivable, by sale, to “participating” banks and financa
" companies. The Company receives consideration from the participating entities. In accordance with SFAS
-140—or SFAS 125 if prior to March 31, 2001 -dccountirig for Transfers and Servicing of Financial dssers
- .and Extinguishments of Liabilities, these transfers are accounted for as sales. The transferred assets (i.e. notes

-~ teceivable) are isolated from the Company. The participating companies obtain the right—fres of conditions
‘that constrain it from taking advantage of that right—to pledge or exchange the notes receivable. In addition,
the Compeny does not maintain control over the transferred assets and the transfer agresments do not entitle

-the Company or obligate the Conpany to repurchase or redeem the notes receivables before their maturity,
~ Based on management's experience the carrying value for notes receivable approximates the fair value.

L)

.When the Comapany sells participations in notes receivable to investers, it ratains servicing rights and interest
- income which are retained interests i the loan partcipations. Gain or loss on sales of the notes receivable
- depends in part on the. previous carrying amount of the financia) assets involved in the transfer, allocated
. -between the assets sold and the retained interests based an their relative fair value at the date of ransfer.

In all loan participation sales, the Company retsins servicing responsibilities for which it typically receives
annual servicing fees ranging from 25% to-1.375% of the outstnding balancs. In those instances whereby
-annual service fees received by the Commpany are less than the cost of servicing, which is estimatad at .25% of
“the outstanding balance, a servicing liability is recarded. Additionally, the Company often retains interest
income. The Campany's right to interest income is not subordinate to the investor's interests and the
Company shares interest income with investors on a prarata basis. Although not subordinate ta investor's

interests, the Company’s retained interast is subject to eredit and prepayment risks on the transferred financial
ausets.

Brooke Curporation _ . . : - !
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 Biooke Corparation:
Notes to Consoliduted Financial Stutements

YE4RS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000 -

2. . Notes .R_eceiirable (cont)

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company sold $21,355,326 (111) loan participations for
which servicing rights and interest receivable was retained. Corresponding pre-tax gains of $307,670 wera
recorded in 2001. Most of the loans sold prior to 2001 were sold with gservicing margins equal to estimated
servicing costs. However, during the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company had sald loans totaling

. $2.,407,558 with servicing margins not equal to estimated servicing costs resulting in 2 net gain of $10,756. A
"gain was not recordad because management considered this amaunt as immaterial to overall income for 2000.

'.Subscqucnt to the initial recording at fair value, the servicing asset i3 amortized in proportion to end over the

period of estimated net servicing income. Additionally, impairment of the serviging asset is subsequently
evaluated and measured. Subsequent to the mitigl recording at fair.value, interest only receivables are

" ‘'measursad as debt securities classified as available for sale.

(Of the agency loans at December 31, 2001 and 2000, $10,123,323 and §925,508, respectively, are sold to
* varigus participating lenders with recourse to Brooks Credit Corporation. Such recourse .is limited to the
-amount of actual. principal and interest loss incurred and any such loss is not due for payment to the
| participating lender until such time ag all collateral is liquidated, all actions against the borrower are

- completed and all liquidation procesds applied. However, participating lenders may be entitled to periodic

- ., advances from Broole Credit Corporation against liquidation proceeds in the amount of regular loan

payments. Brooke Credit Corporation is not obligated, under any circurhstances, to repurchase any loans sald

-+ -to participating. lenders prior to maturity or finalresolution. All such recourse loans: a) have no balances more

A ~than 60 days past due; b) have adequate collateral; ¢) and are not m default,

1

“The expense pravision associated with the Campariy’s recourse obligation is based on the estimated fair value

" . .-of the obligation. During the yaar ended December 31, 2001, the Company sald 310,993,521 of loan

participations for which the Compeny provided recourse. Losses from recourse liabiliies of $169,422 were

. recorded based on e present value calculation of future cash flows of the underlying loans, No such josses

‘were recorded in prior years.

~ To obtain fair values of retained interests and recourse obligations, quoted market prices are used if avaflable.
" _However, quotes are generally not available for retained interests, so the Company typically estimates fair
~ value based on the present value of future expectad cash flows estimated using managzment's best estimates
A - -of key assumptions—credit losses, prepayments speeds and discount rates commensurate with the risks

mvolved. : -

The predominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans of the Campany's servicing assets have: been
analyzed by management to identify how to swatify servicing assets for the purpase of evalusting and
measuring impairment. The underlying loans are very similar in virtually all respects, however management
has concluded that those underlying loans with adjustable interest rates should be evaluated separately. from

* loans with fixed interest rates. Accordingly, different key economic assumptions would be used when

determining the fair value of fixed rate loans than have been used for adjustable rate loans. However, the tatal
amount at underlying loans that are fixed rate is not material o no evaluation of tair value has been made for
the fixed rate loan stratum. As such, all underlying loans are part of the same stratum snd have been evaluated
uging the key economic assumptions identified for adjustable rate loans. No veluation allowance has been

established because the fair value for the adjustable rate loan stratum is not less than the carrying amount of
the servicing assets.
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- - Brooke Corporatiom
Notes to Consolidated Financiul Statements.

YEARS ENDED DECEMAER 31, 200)] AND 20000

2. | Nates Receivable (cont.)

Aithuugh substantialiy: all of the Company's loans are adjustable, a discount rate has been applied to reflect «
the net present value of fisure revenne streams. As such, changes in the net present. value rate, or discaunt
rate, resulting from interest rate variations, would adversely affect the asset's fair value.

The fair value of the interest-only strip receivable is calculated by estimating the net present value of interest
income on loans so0ld using the discount rate and prepayment speeds noted in the following table: :
The fair value of the interest-only strip receivable is reduced by the.amount of estimated credit losses, which
are calculated using the estimated credit loss percentage noted in the following table. On December 31, 2001,

the fair value of the interest-only strip receivahle recardad by the Company was $184,412. The Company has
* classified the interest-only receivable asset a5 availabie for gale,

" The fair value of the "Servicing Asset" (or liability) is calculated by estimating the net present value of net
servicing income (or .expense) on loans sold using the discount rate and prepayment speeds noted in the

following table. On.December 31, 2001, the fair valne of the servicing asset recorded by the Company was
$293.276. o . ' S '

' Key €conomic assumptions used in measuring the retained interests and recourse obligations at the date of
" loan participation sales completed during the year were as fallows (rates per annum); .

| 001 - 2001
.o _ _ Agency Loans (Adjustable)* Agency Loans (Fixed-Rate)
Prepayment speed = . . 10% 10% -
*. Weighted average lifé (months) 100.43 : : N/A
" . Expected credit losses o % . 5%
Discount rate . ' 8.5% 11.00%

' *Rates for these loans are adjusted based on an index (for most loans, the New York prime rate plus

- 3.50%). Contract terms vary but, for most loans, the rate is adjusted ammually on Decsmber 31,

Brunke C. orparurion 17



" The above adverse changes are calculated on the Company's retained interests in 1oans
" lenders totaling $34,922,295 and excludes unsold loans totaling $3,021,174. The above adverss
" -expected credit losses are caleulated on the Company's retained interests

 Brooke Corporation: " .’
Notes 1o Consoliduted Financinl Statements

YEirs ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 4ND 2000
2. - Notes Receivable (cont)

At December 31, 2001, key economic assu

flows to immediate 10 percent and 20 percent adverse changes in thase assumptions are as follows;

Agaﬁcy Loans . Agency Loans
_ : . i (Adjustable) - (Fixed)

Prepayment speed assumption (annual rate) - 0% . Lo N/A
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change . 8(11,269) . N/A
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change $(22,053) - N/A
Expected credit losses (annnal rate) 5%- ' N/A

* Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change . $(10,940) _ ' N/A
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change = © 5(21,880) . ~ N/A

" Discount rate (annual). _ ' . - 8.5% . . N/A
" Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change $(9,937) "o N/A
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change _ $(19,491) N/A

. These _sensitivities are hypothetical and. should be nsed with caution. The effect of & variation in a
-~ particular assumption on the fair value of the servicing asset and recoirse liability is calculated without

changing any other assummption; in reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in’another, which
might magnify or counteract the sensitivities. The numbers used above are actual dallar gmounts end. nat

. listed inthe thousands.

sold to participating
' changes for
in_loans sold with recourse to

participating lenders totaling $10,123,323 and ¢xcludes unsold and nen-recourse loans towaling §27,820,146.

- THE FOLLOWING ILLUSTRATE HOW THE CHANGES IN FARR VALUES WERE CALCULATED
TOR 10% AND 20% ADVERSE CHANGES IN KEY ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS (PREPAYMENT
-+ SPEED OF 10%, CREDIT LOSS RATE OF 5% AND DISCOUNT RATE OF 8.5%), -

| 10% Adverse Change In Prepayment Spead on Retained Servicing Interest;

Estimated cash flows from loan servicing fees @ 11% prepay speed . § 592,519

- Servicing expense @ 11% prepay speed {195.419)
Discount of estimated cash flows to present value @ 8.3% discount rate (110,791)
Carrying value of retained servicing interest in loan perticipations (adverse) 236,309
Carrying value of retained servicing inerest in loan participations (normal) (293276}
Decrease of carrying value due to adverse change (3 6,967)
Bronke Corparvarion ' 3

mptions and the sensitivity of the current fair value of residual cash -



" Brooke Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
YEiRs ENDED DEcEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

2. . Notes Receivable (cont.)

20% Adverse Change In Prepavment Speed on Retalned Servicing Interest

Estimated cash flaws from loan servicing fees @ 12% prepay speed
Servicing expense @ l'l%.prepay speed o

Discount of estimatad cash flows to present value @ 8.5% discount rate
Carrying value of retained servicing intsrest in Joan participations (adverse)

Carrying value of retained .ser;/icing interest in lom participatioris (normal)
Decrease of carrying value due to adverse change '

10% Adversé Change in Prepayment Speed an Retatnad Interest (strip receivable):

"'Es'timated'cash flows from interest income @ 11% prepay speed

‘Estimatad credit loss on recourse loans @ 5% credit loss/11% pr'e.pa)-( speed

- Discount of estimated cash flows to present valus @ 8.5% discou_n"c rate,
. Carrying value of ratained mterest in loan participations (advers;) _

' Carrying value of retained fnterest in loan participatins (norinal) -
- Decrease of carrying value due to adverse change ‘

S 20% Adverse Chanee o Prepayment Speed on Retalned Tnterest (strip recelvable):

Estimated cash flows from interest income (@ 12% prepay spead
Egtimated credit loss on recourse loans @ 5% credit loss/] 2%, prepay speed

“Discount-of estimated cash flows to present value @ 8.5% discount rate

Carrying valie of retained interest in loan participations (adversé)

' Can'ymg value of retained interest in loan participations (normal)
Decrease of carrying value due to adverse change

-10% Adverse Change in Credit Loss Rate on Retained Interest (sirip receivable):

 Estimated cash flows from interest incame @ 10% prepay speed

- Estimated credit lass on recourse loang @ 5.5% credit loss/10% prepay sp
" Discount of estimated cash flows to present valus @ 8.5% discount rate
a Carrying value of retained interest in loan participations (adverse)

Carmrying value of retained interest in lazn participations (normal)
Decrease of carrying value due to adverse change

$ 572,704
(138,828)
(104,235)

279,641 .

(293,276)
5 (13.615)

$ 421,447
(199,399)
(41,938)
180,110

(184.412)
$(4.302)

5 407,023
(192,593)
(38.436)
175,994

(184,412)
(8,418)

5436375
(223,289)
{(39.614)
173.472
(184.412)
(3 10,940)

Bravke Corpuradan
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Brooke Corporation’

}’z-:uzs ENDED DECEMHER 31, ’IHJ! AND 2000

. Notes Recewable (cont.)’

. 20% Adverse Ch’mee In Credit Loss Rate on Retafned Interast (strig rece{vable]

+ Notes to Consalidated Financial Statement.s

Eshmateci cash flows from interast income @ 10% prepay speed
Estimatad credit losses on recourse loans @ 6% credit lass /10% prepay sp
Discount of estimated cash flows to present value @ 8.5% discount rate

Cal_'rymg value of rctamed mterast in loan pa:tlmpatmna (adversc)

-

Carrymg valuc of retained interest in loan parncmanons (uormal)

Decrease of carrying value due to adverse change -

10% Adverse Change In Disconnt Rnte on Retained Ser \ffc!ng ]’nterest

Estimated cash flows from loan servicing fees' @ 10% prepay spccd

- Servicing expense @ 10% prepay speed

. Discount of estu'nated cash flows to present value @ 9 35% discount rate

Ca.rrymﬂ value of retained scmcmg intérest in loan participations (adverse)

" Carrying value of reta.med semcu:g interest in loan parnclpatons (normal)
~ Decrease of carrying value due to adverse change

20% Adverse Change in Dlscuunt Rnte on Retalned Servlcing Interest:

Eshmated cash flows from loan servicing fees @ 10% prepay speed
Servicing expense at 10% prepay speed

~ Discount of estimated cash flows to present value @ 10.2% discount rate

Carrying value of retained servicing interest in loan participations {(normal)
Decrease of carrying value due to adverse chanﬂr:

10% Adverse Change in Discount Rate ate on Retained Interest (strip rece!vable]

. Estimated cash flows from interest income @ 10% prepay speed

. v

- Estimatad credit losses on recourse loans @ 5% loss rate
-Discount of estimated cash flows to present value @ 9.35% discount rate

Carrying value of retained interast in loan participations (adverse)

Carrying value of retained interast in loan participations {normgl)
Decrease of carrying value due to adverse change

Carrying value of retained servicing intsrest in loan participations (adverse),

8§ 436,375

(240,019)
(33,824)
162,512

(184,412)
($ 21,880)

- $ 607,636

(202,569)

(117,892) .

287,175

(293,276y
(3 6.101)

3 607,636
202,389)
(123,757)
181,310

(293,276)
(§ 11,966}

$ 436,375
(205,378)
(49,921)
180,576

(134,412)
(¢ 3.836)

Brooke Carparariun




T " Broolte Eorporation.
Notes to C'onsdlftl,ated F ﬁzrmc‘ial Stz@re:nent.s:
YEARS ENDED DeCEMBER 3 1, 2001 ann 2000

. 2 Notes Receivable (cont)

T 209 Adverse Change In Discount .Rnte on Retained Interest {strip recalva i)Ie):

Estimated cash flows from interest income @ 10%

4 prepay speed. § 436,375
Estimated credit losses on recourse loans @ 5% lossrate .. ' (205,878) |
Discount of estimated cash flows to present value @ 10.2% discount rate - o (33,6100
Carrying value of retained interest in loar!-parﬁcipationa {adverse) 176,887
Carrying value of retainad interest in loan participations (nommal) ~ ., (184,412
Decrease of camrying value due to adverse change ' ( $7,52.5)

- The following is an lustration of disclosure of expected static pool credit logses for loan participations sold
" with recourse to the Corpany. “Static poal cradit loss" ig an analytical too] that matches cradit losses with tha

-'"correspcmding loans 3o’ that loan growth does nat distort or minimize actual loss rates, The Company
- discloses static pool loss rates by measuring credit logses for loans originated in each of the last three years.

" Agency Recourse Loans _Sold in

- . - 1999 L2000 2001
‘December 31, 2001 . - S 0. g 0
December 31, 2000 _ 0 0
December 31, 1999 0 :

4

* Brooke Corporation
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" *Loans 60 days or more past due are Based on end of periad total loans,

. #%% Net credit losses are charge-offs and are based on tota] loans outstanding.
. #**Represents the principal amount of the loan, Interest recejvabla
- " participation loans are excluded from this table because they are recognized separately.

E ' purpose of acquiring the Company's common
- -8198,862 and $169,663, Tespectively,

--loan balanices tataling $8,193, all such loang have been sold to unaffiliated third parties with
' such, 38,193 has been' deducted from the Company's equity on December 31

3. Pi'operty and Equipmént ) :
A surimary of property and eqitipment and depresiation is as follows:

- Brooke Corporation -
Notes to Consolidated F, inancial Stutements

YE4RS ENDED DECEVBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

2 Notes-‘Receivz_lble (cont.) .

The fallowing table presents quantitative

information about delinquencies. net credit losses and components
of loan participations sald with recourse. : ' o

Total Principal Amonnt - Prinecipal Net Credit
. of Loang ' Amounts 60 or Lasseg¥#*
More Days Past.
Due* .
o e 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
Participations Sold with-Recourse 310,123 323 $925,508 - 30 50 §0 . £0
..Portfolio Loans - o - $3,021,174  $177,827 50 0 . 30 - $0
"Total Loans Managed** . 813144497 $1,103355 . $0°  $o 50

50
** Owned and participated loans in which the Company has a risk-of loas.

and servicing rights held for

stock. Of the consumer loans at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
have been made {0 employees for this purpase. With the exception of

Ithout recourse. As
« 2001, but no reserve for logses

was established because this loan was subsequentty sold fo an unaffiliated third party without recoursa,

. | 2001 2000 -
Fumiture and fixtures . . § 279,649 § 299,101
' Office and computer equipment _ _ -+ 1,516,168 1,435,309
-Automobiles . 606,284 . 532,685
' . . 2,402,101 2,367,095
" Less: Accumulated dépreciation (1,752,325) (1.565,446)
" Property dnd equipment, net $ 649,776 § 701,649
Depreciation expense $ 241167 § 285,609

Brooke Corporarion




" Brooke Corporation
" Notes to C, onsolidatec Financial Statements

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 4np 2000

4. . Bank Loans, Notes Pa}ra'ble, and Other Long-Term Obligations
: 2000 T ggp

. First National Bank & Trust, Phillipsburg, KS,"‘line of credit. $960.000

available, 30 nor utlized. Due January 2003, Imterest ite jg 10.5044,
Collateralized by accaunt receivahle, . 5 960,000 © 3 66n 000
Farmers. Sate Bank Phillipsbury, KS, due December 2006 lnterest rate s - '

10.75%, paysble $15,500 mouthly, Collateralizad by stack, inventory, fixed

- asgets and personal guaranty of certain officers of Brooke Corparation.

' State Bank of Colwich, Colwich, KS, due August 2004, Tnterest rate ig
11.75%, 'payable 51,433 monthly. Collateraiized by insu.ranc'e:. agency assets,

Chrysler Fiimﬁcial, Overland Parle, KS, due February 2000 fo Decembar

2003. Interest rates are 7.80% to 8.65%, payable monthly. Collateralized by
. automobiles. ' ’ : .

L 857,743

38,016 49,995

- : ' : 183,268 131,000
. Colauial Pacific, Portland, OR, due Decamher 2001. Interest ratz i 14.811%
" payable 32,083 monthly. Collateralized by persomal guaranty of certain )
-officers of Brooke Carporation. S ' i T . 22.912
Braoke Investmens, Inc., Phillipsburg, KS, dne Febmary 2007, Interest rate
~is 10.00%. payable $1.718 monthly, Note is s0ld 1o participating bank,

- Collerzralized by certain Agency assets acquired by Broolee fnvestments, Inc, 82,757 94,453
# David Patterson, . Sr., Phoenix, AZ, due March 2008, Interest nite g 0%,
" pdyable 31,112 monthly. Unsecured deforred comipensation ‘agreement
provided by The American Agency, Inc. .

“Robert B, Patterson, Overland Park, K5, due February 2001. Interest rate is
'7.75%, principal balancs plus  acerued - interest payable annually,
Collateralized by 500 shares of American Agency, Inc. comman stock end
'+ .the guaranty of certain officers of Broake Corparation, : -

".Hartley Agency, Inc., Baxter Springs, KS, due Junc 2001. Intersst rat is
* - 0%, entire balancs i3 due at maturity, Collateralized by certin BEENCY agsafy
acquired by Broake Corparation, -

- 13,344

- " 201,364

" Premier Insurance Agency, Poplar BluE Mo, Interest rate is 3.00%, '
- balance due Jannary 2002. Collatzralized by certain agency assets acquired

- by Brooke Corporation. 518.082 619,737
_ Stawart Insurance, Monrog, LA, due Angust 2001. Interest rate ig 0%, entire
balance is dus at manurity, Callateralizsd by certein agency assets acquirad
"by Brooke Corporadon. ‘ . 252.245 -
APB Insvrers, Crane, MO, due July 7001, Interast rate iz Q%, entire balance
- . is due at maturity. Callateralized by carain agency assets acquired by
* Brooke Corporatian.

Roppole Insuraaee, 'S.hreveport. LA, due July 2001. Interest mate is 0%,
-, entire balance i3 due at maturity. Collarzralized by certain agency agsats
‘acquired by Brooke Corporation. -

Brooke Carpuration ' . ' 23
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"B;iroolke' Corporativir:

4. Bank Loans, Notes Payable, and Other Loug-Term Obli

Mesa: Insurance Agency, Pueblo, CO, due February 2001, Interest cte is
%, entirz balance is due at maturity, Collaterized by certain agency assets

acquired by Braoke Corpoaratian. : .

James Mitchell Brown, Lampasas, TX, dus February 2001, Interest rate ig

%, entira balance due at maturity, Collateraiized by certain agency assets
acquired by Brooke Corpararion. ' :

.Dawn Insurance Agency,'Inc. Stras.hurg. CO, due May 2003. Interest rata ig
:0%, payable $43,322 apnually. - Collateralized by. certain agency assets |

acquired by Braoke Corparation. _ _

Lalumondier nsurance, Inc., Keammey, MO, due September 1, 2004. Interest
rate is 5%, annual jnstallments of 368,219 thereafier. -Callateralized by
certain agency assets acquired by Brooks Carporatian,

asaets acquired by Brooke Corporation,

_ Phares and Litag Agency, Inc., Many, L4, due Juns 2002. * Interest rate is

0%%, entire bailancs jis due at maturity. Collateralizad by certain agency asssty
acquired by Brooke Corparation. : ' :

Interest rate at prime rate, first inatallment of $89,463 due January 2002, and
annual installments of $89,465 thereafter, Collateralized by certain ggency
assets acquired by Brooke Corporation, s '

-Deila Bell Agency, Fowler, CO, March 2002. | Interest Tate is 0%, entire

balance due at maturity, Collateralized by certain agency assets acquired by
Brooke Corporation. B

~Mid Florida Insurance, Inc., Ocila, FL,. Intzrest rate iz 0%, balancs dus

Jannary 2002. Callateralized by certain agency assets acquired by Brooke
Carporation, .

- ~All Drivers InsuranceInc., Calorado Springs, CO, due September 2003.

Interest rate is 594, .annual payments of $112,500. Collateralizad by certain
agency assets acquired by Brooke Corporation

- Gateway Realty of Columbuos, Inc., Columbus, NE, due Septernher 2010.

Interest rate ig 7%, annual principal payments of 567,343, Collateralized by
certain agency assets acquired by Brooke Corporation. :
Bruner Insurance Agency, Marianna, FL, due September 2004, Interest rate

‘18 5%, balance due January 2002. Collateralized by certain agency assets
- acquired by Brooke Corporation. )

-JL Rucker Insurance, Shrevaport, LA, due Tanuary 2, 2002. Intersst rate ig

-y

0%. Collateratized by certain AgEency assets acquired by Broake Corporation,’
Gary Karch & Associates A-1 Insurance, Mt Vemon, IL, due December

© - 2002. Lmterest rat¢ is 0%. Collaterized by certain agency assets acquired by

. Brooke Corporation.

Kohn-8enf Insuranca Agency, Inc., St Louis, MO, due Decembar 2002,
Interest ratz is 5%, entire balance due ar maturity. Collaterized by certain
agency assets acquired by Braoke Corporation.’

Sun Century Insurance Agency, Inc., Phoenix, AZ, due ‘December 2003,
Interest rate is 5%. annual principal payments of 567,333, Collaterized by
cartain agency assers acquired by Brooke Corparation.

W.I. of Flarids, Inc., Tampa, FL, due December 2003] Interest rate is 0%,

annual payments of $73,176. Callaterized by certain agency assety acquired
by Brooks Carparation.

Anderson Insurance Agency, Inc, Ballwin, MO, due Mey 2002. Interest rate .
is 7.5%, entirs balance is due at manuriey, Collateralized by certain agency- -

Band-Pyatt Imsurance Agency, Inc., St Louis, ‘MO, due Angust 2004, -

Notes to Consolidated Finuncial Statements
Ye4RS ENDED DECEMBER 3], 2007 AND 2008

gations.(cont)

86,644

161,300.

207,325

536,791

97,500

643,000
225,000
604,109

280,701

270,000
67,500
139,390

134,667

146,352

204,636

$ 100000

80,000

- Brovke Corporasion



. None of the benk loans, notes payable and ofher Joq
Campany to maintain

o I;terest_incmTed on bank lga
.- 31,.2001 and 2000 is £513,193 a
' h'ansactions utilized to purchese agency assets,

" Brooke Carporation:
" Notes to Consolidated F, inancial Statements
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 ano 2000 )

4. . Bank Laans, Notes Payable, and Otheir Long-Term Obligations (eont.)

‘ Watson & Associates Insurance Services; Inc. Phoenix, AZ, due Novergher
2004. Interest rate is 0%, snnual payments of $37,167.. Collaterized by
certain agency assets acquired by Brooks Corporatia )

I 171,300 -
Tatal bank loans and notes payable 3,785,058 1,517,934
Baonds payable (Ses Note 3 _3,780,000 1,980,000
Tatal bank loans, notes payablz and ather, long-term obligations- 11,3 63,058 54 97,954
* Less: Current maturities and short-term debt ' . (4,166,123 . (2,161,190)
Total long—tarm debt $7,398,935 33,336,764

minimmm financial ratios or.net
restrict management's ebility to buy or sel] s

ns,. notes payable an& other long-
nd $384,972, respectively. §

. Bank loans, notes payable and oﬂ'l:r.iang-tann.o'bligations mature as follows: )

Bank Laang i
8 Notes Boands .
. Payable Payahle Tatal

. 2002 5 9n123. 3 975000 § 4,166,123
2003 1,624,531 165,000 1,939,531
" 2004 334,071 4,440,000 4,774,071
-0 2005 - 178278 . 178,278
2006 184,545 - 184545
Thereafter . 21510 - 272,510
5 5,785,058 § 5780000 5 11,565.058

Bruaks Carporation

g term obligations contain covenants that: require thé
worth; restrict management'’s ability to pay dividends;
sefs; restrict management's ability to incur additional debt; or
. contain any subjective acceleration clauses, : )

term obh:g_ations_ for the years ended December

hort-term debt represents the non-cash investing
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Notes ta Consolidatad F, tnancicl Statq‘:‘menr.r

) YEARS ENDED DécEMBER 44, 2001 anp 2000
5. Long-Term Debt, Bonds Payable .

Brooke Credit Corparation has offered honds (series 19974, 19978 and -1997C) for sale to institutiona]
mvestars in £5,000 denominations, Brogke Credit Corporation has also offered bonds (serjes 1997D, 1998E -
end 2000F) for sale to the public in $3,000 denominations, Thesga bonds are issusd in registered farm with
interest payahle semi-annually on January 1% gnd July 1% of each year. -These bends are not cailable by
Brooke Credit Corporation and are got redeemable by the bandhalder until maturity, '

2001 <2000
) - s . . Principal Principal
- Bond Serjes . Rate Maturity " . Value Valug
19974 . lo.000% . " Jamuary 1, 2001 N _ $ 165,000
1997B 10.250% . Tamuary 1, 2002 153,000 . 155.000
1997C 1055003 Jamary 1, 2003 -7 365,000, 245,000
. 1997D ©10.125% July 1, 2001 " . | 595,000
. 1998E - 10.125% Tanuary 1, 2002 . 820,000 - 820,000
MO - g5y hiy1,2004 . 4440000 -
" Total $ 5,780,000 § 1,980,000

‘Iiterest payable is $205,415 and $99,905 at Decerper 31,200

1 and 2000, respectively,
‘6. Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases

.‘The Company leases varigus equipment which may be purchased for a namina amount at the expiration of

- ' the lease agreements. The Cormpany is required to provide insurance coverage an the equipment as specified
by the lessor. Under the eriteria established hy SFAS 13, thege assets have beer capitalized in the

Company's
- . financial statements. Tha capital lease obligations have all besn paid in full, Froperty and equipment
" includes the following amounts reflecting the capitalization of these assats:
' 2001 2000
* Office and computer equipment $ 415,483 | 3 415,483
© Less: Accumulated amortization . {(407,311) - (386.609)
§ 8172 _ § 28978
Capital lease amortization i included in deprzciation expense.
Brooke Corporarion 24




Broolte Corporation:
" Notes to Consolidated Finunciul Statements

YEARS ENDED DEC'.EMBER 31,2001 4nD 2000
7. . TIncome Taxes

- The elements of income tax expense (benefit) are a3 follows:

2001 000
Curent N SR | 0. 30
Defered S 324 (251,022)

$358,.241 . 5(251,0321

The Cumpany § net operatm

a 1035 carryforwards are used ta offset the current tax expense by decreasing the .
d&fr:rr:d tax asset, .

Recuncihanun of the UE! fedaral statutor

ry tax rate to Brooke Corporaunn ] effectlve tax rate on pretax
income, baged on the doll‘ar impact of this’

ma_]or compcment on thc current mcumc tax expense:

2001 . 2000
© U.S. federal statutory tax rate - 34% 34%
State stnmmry tax rate % . 4%
Effect of the utilization of et qperatiig losy can'yfnrwards o (3%) (3%)
' Nhsccllanr:ous {1%) (1%)
_Efféctive tex rate | CL34u 4%
- Réconciliation of deferred tax asset:
' S : . " 2001 2000 .
Beginning balance, Jenuary 1. _ 3 854,066 § 603,034
Deferred income tax (expense) benefit {358,241) 351,032
N - Balance, December 31 3 495,825 $334,066
) e ———————w S ——
" Expiration datés of net operating loss carryforwards:
2010 $428.553 2019 5 118,346
2018 285,174 - 2020 626,236

" Brooke Corporution
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* - insurance limit of the Federal Deposit Insurance Cerporation,

 states of Arizona, Colarade, Florida, Tewa, Mlinois

loans to Brooke Carporation's franchise agents, franchise sub

- segments and allocates resources to them based ap the. net
- accounting policies are the same as thosa

- The table below reflects summarized financial information conc
., forthe years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000:

_ Brooke Corporation:
- Notes to Consoliduated Financial Stazements

S . YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2001 4ND 2000)
8. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a defined conirfbution retirement plan covering
may contribute up 1o 15% of their corpensation. The Company m

periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, During the year ended December 31, 2001 the Company
approved a Compensatory Stock Option Plan for management employess, Benefits under the plan have nat
-commenced as of December 31, 2001, ' '

9. Concentration of Credit Rigk . -

The Company maintains cash balances at severa] banks. On December 31,20

01 and 2000, the Company had
account balances of $4,943 574 and 32,256,693, respectively,

with one bank which exceeds th.e $100,000

10. Segment and Related Infurmntiun

"The Company's two reportable segments as of and for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
«consisted of its insurance agency business and its financial services business. . The insurance agency husiness
includes the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries which are licensed insurance agencies operating in the

+ Kansas, Louisiana, Missour, Nebraska, Nevada,
Oldahoma, Texas, and Utah, Tha Company sells msurance thrau gh its netwark of exclusiv

franchise sub-agents, non-exclusive brokers and insurance praducers, The finance sarvice
.the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, which is a licensed finance company, The Company:- originatas

_ -3gents, ‘insurance producers and insurance, ,
palicyholders, Unallocated corporate-level “Xpenses are reported in the reconciliation of the segment totals to

the related consclidated totals as “ather totporate expenses”. Management evaluates the performance of its
income beforé income riaxes.. The segments’
described in the fummary of sipnificant accounting policies.

erning 'th‘e, Conpany's reportable 'segments

Insurance’ . Financia] Elimination of
_ ‘ Agency Services . Intersegment  Consolidated
) _ Business Business . Activity Totals
.-2001 N : T
- Insurance commissions $20,895232 § - - 5 - §20,895,232
Interest income . . (343,632): 578,302 {160,076) - 74,594
"Gain on sale of notes receivable . - 507.670 - 507.670 ..
. Interest expense o 169361 s = _ 169,561
‘Commissions expense 16,220,082 . - 16,220,082
Impairment loss . 162,877 - - 162,877
Depreciation and amortizatign 382,205 58319 . 440,614
Segment assets 8.930.464 13527753 (5,001306) 17456911
Expenditures for segment assets _232,?90 - . - 232,790
Bru.uka G ru;c;r.u'mr'an 28




Braaf{e C’arpomz‘wrz :
Note,s to C‘ onsolidated Financial .S'i.‘atemanrs

I’EARSENDEDDEC‘EHBER.?J 2004 AND 20010

ﬁ), Segment and Related Information (cont.)

i
I - " Tnsurancs Finanelnl  Elimination of. -
_ Agency - Serviceg . Imtersegment  Consolidateg
- SR " Buginess’ Basiness - Actlvity - Totalg
l Jooo2000 ¢ S | | _
|  Insurance commissions S50 5 L | - . $13,751.080
l " Interest I.ncomc‘ (184,241) - 420,654, -. (131,464) . 104,949
" Interest expense 20731 - 180,000 . 200,731
I ' Commissions éxpense L 9,439,111 - 9,489,111
_ Depreciation and amartization _ 405,735 ‘ - - - 405,735
l . 'Impairment loss 300,000 - - - 300,000
. Segmentassets 8,181,677 373465 (1,040.000) 7,515,142
l . Expenditures for segment assets " 404,147 ] .o 404,147
l' v . Profit (Loss) ggﬂ _ 2000
o Insurance Agency profi $ 3,616,785  § 3,171.262
l B Financial Services profit - 867,577 289,191
. " Total segment profit 54484362 3 3460493
I-' S - Unallocated amounts: o
, Finders feeg ~ 450,000 -
l : Buyerass:stance.p]an fees 1,589,550 -
B o Loss on sale of fixed assets . - (47,397 -
l ~.Gain cn sale of agencies 676,503 17,500
' " Other gorporate expenses (6.099.369) " (4,216,283
_ - Inbomc(loaa) before income taxes § 1,053,649 3 (738.330)
l .
i
i
l Br-'rmke C m‘pumu;m 2¢
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.. Company is in the process of preparing for its adoption of SFAS No. 142 and is making the det _
-to its reparting units ‘and the amounts of goodwill, intangible assets, other assets, and liabilities allocated tq

~ those reparting units, The Company is evaluating the useful lives assigned to its intangible assets and does nat
© anticipate any material changes to such uss

. This staternent applies to all entities. Jt applies to legal obligations associated with

for an asset retirement obligation be recoenized in the period in which it is incurred if a

Brooke Corporation:
Notes to Consolidated F, inancial Statements

- YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,-2001 48D 3000
11. New Ai_:counting_Stand:ird

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, "Business Cambinations," and SFAS No. 143, "Gaodwil] and
Other Intangible Assets," (collectively teferred to as the "Standards"), which are effective for the Company as
of January 1, 2002, except ag noted below, SFAS No. 141 supercedes APB Na. 16, "Business Combinations.”
The provigions of SFAS Ng. 141 (1) requirz that the purchase method of accounting bs used for all business .
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, (2} provide specific criteria for the mitial rzcognition- and

measurement of intangible assets apart from goodwill, and'(3) required that un-amortized negative goodwi]l

intangible assets into or out of gdodwill, based on certain criteria. SFAS Ma. 142 supercedes APB. Na. 17,
"Intangible Assets," and is effective for fscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, SFAS No. 142
primarily addresses the accounting for goodwill and intangible assets subsequent to their injtal recognition.
The provisions of SFAS No. 142 (1) prohibit the amortization of goadwill and indafinite-lived intangible

-intangible assets may be impaired), (3) require that reparting units be identified for the purpose of assessing

potential future impairments of goodwill, end (4) remove the forty-year limitation on the amartization periad
of intangible assets that have finite lives, : : Lo

The Company will adopt the provisions of SFAS No..142 in its first quarter ended March 31, 20ﬁ2.’ The
erminations as

sful lives. However, the present valie of acquired insurance

- contracts will be separately identified and amortized. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwil] be tested annually

for impairment using a two-step process. The

first step of the gaodwil] impairment test is to test fora potential
-impairment. The second step of the gaodwill i

mpairment test is to measure the amount of the impairment loss,

In June 2001, the FASB issued S_FA.S_NO-. 143, "Accounting for Asget Retirement Obligations" ("SEAS 143")
which amends SFAS No. 19 "Financial Accounting and Reporting by Oil and Gas Producing Companies®,

the retirement of long-
normai aperation of a
fair value of a liabiity

lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and {or) the
long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. SFAS 143 requires that the

Brooke Corparation A



- additional §1,229,671 of preferred stock has been sold.

~of purchasing a bank. Brogke Bancshares’ entere

The Compensation Co.mmittec of the Ba

- -Agency, Inc. owns franchjse agencies which purchase Maste
- ~Company at the sama general prices end general tarms 83 provi

- finance subsidiary, Braole Credit Corparation, was 31,456,362,

. Brooke Corporatiom:
* Notes to C‘an.s;alidared Financial Statements

| .  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 37, 2001 AN 2000
11. New.Accnunﬂng Stnqdai-d (cont.)

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment of Disposal of Long-Lived
Asgets” ("SFAS 144") which supersedes FASB No, 12] "Accaunting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Asgets to Be Disposed Of", and the accounting and Teparting provisions of APR
Opinion Na. 30, "Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Sagment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusua) and Infrequently Qccuring Events and Transactions®. SFAS 144 ajsq
amends ARB No. 51 "Cansolidated Financial Statements®, The provisions of SFAS 144 are required to be
applied starting with fiscal years beginning after December 13, 2

: 001. Management cantinues to evaluate the
impact that adoption of SFAS 144 will have an its consalidated financial statements, N '

C 12, Subsequent Events

ing center. The tota] amount of Industrial Revenue Bonds
e, 10 purchase the building and start demalition with the

: lipsburg). Construction is scheduled for
.completion by December 3 1,2002. . '

‘Brooke Cofporation’ contimisg to sell preferred staglk 'tp Kansas residents, Since December 31, 2001 an

‘Brooks Corporation has issued $585,000 in bonds since Decermnber 31, 2001. There has been $980,000 in
-bond maturities since December 31, 2001. - ' ’ o

Brooke Corporatien Purchased s 1/3 interest in ap airplane for g cost of $65,000.

Corporatiun] was formed January 23, 2002 for the purpose

d into an agreement on February 22, 2002 1o purchase &
Kansas bank subject to regulatory appraval. _ '

Board of Directors gpproved, in March 2002, the issuance of stack
options to severa] management employess,

13. Related Party Information . _
Robert D, Orr, Leland G. Or and Michael Hess own 100% of the voting stack of GI- Agency, e, G
T Agent services and abiain loans from the
ded to other unaffiliatad franchise agents. As
8 made to GI Agency, Ine. by the Company s

Amounts owed tg the Company by Gi
Agency, Inc. are secured by hypathecation of ai] the shares of the Campany's common stock owned by

Brooke Holdings, Inc. which currently represents 73.8% of the total shares outstanding, Al of the loans
made to GI Agency, Inc., have been sold to an unatfiliate

above, certain conflicts of interest may arjge between the C
disputes thet acour as a resyl; of such relationships.

of December 31, 2001, the total outstanding balanae of aj] loan

Brooke Corpurusion
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'+ assigns them to prospective or existing franchige agents. In

. through May 31, 2001. From Tanuary 1,200 through Decsmber 31, 200

. allocated between the Company and' GI Ageney, Inc.,. the expense-alloc
- evaluated to determine faimess, e

-on the value of premiums to be collected under such agency a
. is impartant to the Company’s prospects,

--Agency, Inc., of Brownsville, Texas, to Bragke Credit Corpo

‘Inc. was executed on May 13, 2000 for $1,200,000 end is scheduled to
. December 31, 2001 the principal belance of the loan was 31 125,307,

 Brooke Corporation:
" Notes to Consolidated F, i}wff}zc!al Statémenrs,
YEJRSENDED DECEMBER 31, 200/ AND 2000

13. -Related Party lInforméltibn {cont.)

On 'occasion, the Cofnj)any has assigned all of its rights, title and interegt ina
agencies to GI Agency, Inc., without consideration from GI Agency, Inc.

In its role of matching agency
buyers and sellers, the Company from time tg time executes pu

rchase agreernents tg acquire agency assets apd
the event that agency sgsets purchased by the
Company are not sold ta 2 prospective or existing franchjse agent, the Company may assign it rights and

igati such purchase agreement to GI Agengy, Ine. Such assignments allow the Campany to

Inc. to operate such agengies until

1. 2001, GI Agency has collectad
commissions on the assets subject to such assignments in the amount of 5141,2246. '

On May 31, 2001, GI Agenéy, Inc : _
third party unaffiliated with the Company’s management. On August ||

"associated with its agency in Ogallala, Nebraska to. & third party unaffiliated with the C‘.ompany’
‘management; . ) . o

Until May 31, 2001, the 'C‘or'npany' éhafed. office facilities with GI Agency, Inc. at its Grand'IsIand, Nebraska
office location. . Broole Investments, Inc,, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, leased the Grang

Island property from an unaffiliated lessor. The Company reimbursed Brooke Investments, Tne. far paymenis

made in connection with the leass and GI Agency, Inc. reimbirsed the Comipany for its use of the facilities up

L, GI Agency, Inc. reimbursed the
expenses, Although expenses ara
ation has not been independently

Company $148,484 for personnel expenses and 32,530 for office facilities

Robert D. Orr, Leland G. On" and Michae) Hess havé, in som

€ cases, each guarantesd arnounts due suppliers
under certain agency agreements

- The amounts guaranteed ‘under such 2ZENCy agresments varies depending
grezments. The continuance of these guarantsas

Inc. which owns 73.84% of the
on Decsmber 31, 200] bearing
» 2002, The outstanding balance on the

Robert Orr, Leland Orr, Michael Hess, and Shawn Lowry have eac

assignment in stock of Austin Agency, Inc. ag consideration for their guarantees. The loan to Austin Agency,

mature on August 1, 2010, As of

Broeke Corporatiug

gresments ta purchase insurance |
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Notes to Consolidated F, t‘nm.: cial Statements
YEARS ENDED DECEMRER 31, 2001 anp 2000

13. ° Related Party Information (cont.)

+ @ Kanzas limited ligbiliry
purposz of First Financia]
oration to franchise agents
oup, L.C., guaranteed §5%
3. In consideration for this

 includes investing in agencies and guaranteeing loans made by Brooke Credit Corp

wha have bought agencies fram the Company, On June 1, 2001, First Financial Gr
of the Braoke Credit Corporation loan to Palmer, L.L.C. of Baxter Springs, Kansa
guaranty, First Financial Group, L.C. received & 15% profit interest in  Palmer, LL.C. The laan was
execuied on June 1, 2001 for $799,519 and is scheduled to -mature on Septemnber 1, 2011. As of December
- 31,2001 , the principal balance of the loan wag §789,331. On September 28, 2001, First Financial guaranteed

25% of the outstanding principal balance of two Brooke Credit Cormparation loans to R&F, L.L.C. of Kansas
City, Missouri. Bath loans were executed on September 28, 2001 in the amount of $102,918 and 5345791,
. respectively, and both mature on December 1, 2013, As of December 31, 2001 the balance on these loans

was $102,918 and $545,791, respectively. Tn consideration for these guarantees, First Financial Group

received 3% profits interest in R&F, LL.C. On October 15, 2001 First Financial guaranteed 50% of the

outstanding principal balance of The Wallace Agency, LL.C. of Wanette, Olclahoma. This loan was executed
on October 15, 2001 in the amount of $440,656 and i3 to mature on January 1, 2014, As of December 31 |

12001 the balance on this loan was $440,656. In consideration of this guarantee, Firs: Financial Group
receives a 7.5% profits interest in The Wallace Agency. . . ‘

.On February 7, 2001 M. Lowry barrowed $28,000 from Broolke Credit Corporation bearing interest at 2 rate
adjusted annually and equal to 3.5% per annum over the New York prime rate, which as of the last date of
 deterraination was 12%. This loan was.scheduled to mature on February 15, 2 ! id off
-"" Lowry on March 18, 2002, On Septernber 17, 2001 M. Lowry borrowed $12,000 from Brooke Credit
‘Corporation bearing interest at 10% with 2 scheduled maturity date of December 31, 2001. On Qctaber 1,
0% with a maturity
date of December 31. 2001. On Octobér 31, 2001 Mr, Lowry. borrowed $79,283 from Brooke Credit
Corporation bearing interest at 3.5% Per annum over the New York prime rate with a maturity date of
Navember 1, 2011. The purpose of the loans was to allow Mr. Lowry to purchase stock of tha Company and
finance the operations of First Financial Group, L.L.C. Mr. Lowry paid off these loans on March 28, 2002.

- Michae] Lowry has one loan autstanding from Brooke Credit Carporation. On October 31, 2001 Mr. Lowry

I borrowed 348,597 from Brooke Cradit Corporation bearing interest at 3.5% Per.annum over the New York

prime rate with a scheduled maturity date of Qctober 31, 2011, The purpose of the loan was ta allow Mr.

l Lowry to refinance his loan to purchase stock aof the Company. This loan has been sold to an unaffiliatzd
lender '

Bruoke Corparation 4




- EE -

- *MIr. Garst has one loan with Broolee Credit Corporation 1;n the amount

- . outstanding principal balance as of December 31, 2001 was §9,824.
.. -business operations of American Financia{ Services, LL.C. -

- Overland Park, . Kansas, The Campany and Arensherg Insurance have ente
*_ pursuant to which Arensberg Insurancs participates in the Caup

. "Interest et a rate adjusted armually and equal tg
- . ‘December 31, 2001 was 11.5% for each loan. O
" the remaining two loans are bath scheduled to mature on July 1,
" Insurance have heen sold to an unaffiliated lender,

- Heritage Agency, Inc. which owns an agency in. Hays, Kansas and previougly o
-Bend, Kansas. The Company and American Heritage Agency,

- February 28, 1999 pursuant to which American Heritage Agency

. Agent program. As of December 3 1, 2001, American Heritage ha

. Corparation with total outstanding belances of $1,399,070. Since

" sold assets and reduced itg outstanding loan balances to $339 359 of which all but 364,
. unaffiliated lenders, The ouistanding loans to American Hes

Brooke Corporation .
Notes to Consoliduted Finaneiul Stutements

. YRS ENUED DECEMBER 31, 2001 4np> 3607
13._ Related Party Information (cont.)

+ L.C. includes investing in-agencies.
0 have bought agencies
of the outstanding principle
xecutzd on Octaober 15, 200 |
ation of this guarantee, Firs:
ecember 31, 2001 the balance

balance of The Wallace Agency, [L.L.C. of Wanette, Oklahoma. This loan was e
in the amount of $440,656 and is to mefure on January 1, 2014. In consider

Finaneial Group receives a 5% profit interest in The Wallace Agency. AsofD
. on this loan was $440,6§6: : : .

of* §9,824 bearing ‘imterest at 10.00%,.
mature on Decamber 14, 2002. The
The purpose of the loan was to fund

This loan was executed on December 14, 2001 and is scheduled to

‘Anita Larson is married to Jokn Arznsherg, & partner in Arei-:sberg Insurance of Lawrence, Kansas and
red into a franchise agreement

_ any's Master Agent program. In addition, the

7. Company's finance subsidiary; Brooke Cradit Corporation, has made three loans to Arensberg Insurance. As

of December 31, 2001, the total outstanding balance of such loans was $787,682. Each of the loans bears
3.0% per annum over the New York prime rate, which as of
ne of the loans is scheduled to mature on October 1, 2008 and-
, 2009. Al of the loens made to Arensberg

Ms. Larson borrowed $3'0,000 from Brooke Credit Corporation. 'Il'he'Ioan- bears inrerest at a rate adjusted

* annually and equal to 2.5% per annum over the New Yark prime rate, which as of December 31, 2001 was

12%. The loan is scheduled to mature op August 1, 2005. The outstanding balance

December 31, 2001 was $27,555. The purpose of the loan was to allow Ms. Larson to p
Corapany. . ’ '

of this loan as of
urchase stack of the

Anita Lowry is a sister to Robert D. Orr and Leland G. Orr and the mother of Ska

wn Lowry and Michael
Lowry and is married.to Don Lowry wha is a franchises. Dan & Anita Lowry are

sharzholders of American
wned an agency in Great
Ine. entered into a franchise ggreement an
\ Inc. participates in the C ompany's Master
d three loans outstanding to Brooke Credit
December 31, 2001, American Heritage has

tage currently have individual balances of
of September 1, 2010, May 1. 2002 and
armually-to 3.5% aver the Naw York prime

$272.862, $1.208 and $65.289 with Tespective maturity- dateg

February 1,2014. ARl of the loans bear interest at a rate adjusted
rate,

Bruoke Curporasion
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_ Kansas. Don & Alexing Paden have Purchased $40,000 of Brooke Credit Co

- Wanda Schmidt i3 the ﬁlﬂﬂler-in-law of Robert D, Orr end has purchased a loan

“Lori Hess is the wife of Michael Hess and has purchaged a loan particip
. through her Individual Retiremeént Account in the amount of $103,299,

" The fair value of Robert-Orr's services wa
- "Company's moast senior managers (Leland Orr and Mike Hass

 Orr, the impartance of Robert Orr's contributions,

- ‘maintains a secondary residence in Boulder, CO

" The Company’s employee handbook cantains conflicts

" The Company is filing voluntarily with the SEC
-notreceived official notice of clearing comments,
- affect on this. audit report, '

~ estimated to be $1,200,000 plus Interstate's nat tan
“excesding net tangible baok value was cantiny

" Brooke Corporation: "~
" Notes to Consolidated F inancial Statements

, C . YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000
13, Related Party Information (cont.)

-,

Alexine Paden is the mather of Robert D. Grr and Leland G Orr and is marred to Don Paden, Logan, .
rporation’s bonds which aya *
outstanding at December 31, 2001, :

-

Phyllis Koster is the mother of Michas| Hess and is married ta Henry Kaster, Cawlker City, Kansas. Heriry
Koster has purchased $100,000 of Braoke Credit Corporation's bonds whieh are outstanding at December 3 1,
2001. - . : R -

‘ participation fram Brogke
Credit Corporation through her Indiyidua] Retirement Account in the amount of £3,289. '

ation from Brooke Credit Corporation .

Robert D. Orr has purchased a 'loan participation'ﬁ-dr_n Brhuke Credit Corpordtfon through his Individual
Retirement Account in the amount of §1 15,911, o _ . . )

g estimated at $40,000, or (one half) of the compensation of the
). This value was established after analysis af
d not necessarily the amount of contribution made by Robert
or the Company's dependence an Robert Orr, Mr. Orr is an
tion of his previous reference tok. Additonally, Mr. Orr
and is absent from the company's offices on a frequent basis.

author and is currently worldng on a revised addi

11

_of "interest guidelines. which are applidable tn
rpose of the guidelines is to prevent an employee in a position
ny to use such influence for persana gain, Pursuant to the
position is required ta notify an officer of the Cormpany of ths existence of

Company management and employees, The pu
to influence a decision regarding the Compa
guidelines, an employee in such a
such a situation._

14.  Contingency

(Securities and Exchange Commission). The Company has
therefore, it is possible future SEC comments could have an

v

15. Acquisitions and Divestitures

On June 30, 2000, the Company acquired 900 shareg of Interstate fnsurance Group, LTD from Gerald Lanio
and William Tyer. These shares represented 100% of the shares outstanding. The total purchase price was

gible baok velue however that portion of the purchase price
ent upan future revenues. Therefore, in accordance with
recorded as an asset when cash payments wera made to the
7 were tecorded as Excess Cost af Purchased Subsidiary in
nio and Tyer was recorded far the ditterence between the

paragraph 80 of APB 16, the purchase price was
sellers. Cash payments of $300.000 and 5162,87
2000 and 2001 respectively and no liability to La

Brvuke Curporatiun
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"~ Notes f:d Consoliduted F, fnan_cidl Statements
YEARS ENDED DECEMUER 31, 2001 AND 2001

15, Accjujsiﬁons and Divestitures (cont.j

cash payments and the original estimated purchase price of $1,200,000. As disclosed in

‘ n foatnote 1(g) ta these
financial staternents, these amounts were subsequently written off as impaired. . '

r

16. Supplemental Cash Flow Disclogures
- Supplemental disclosures: )

Cash paid for intarest ' , . .8 51321 § 38497

. Cash peid for incoms tax - T : .8 . - [ -
Non cash financing activity - additional paid in

capital for contributed . ) 3 40,000 5 40,000

. 9BrVices .

Diring the twelve rrion'th'p-eriad ending December 31, 2001, the Statement of cash flows reflect the purchase
.of agencies into inventory totaling $3,040,293 and the sale of agencies from inventory totaling $6,546,571.
-Despite an increase of $550,300 in ‘8gency inventory asrecorded on the December 3 1, 2001 balance sheet, ner

. “cash of $3,506,278 was provided by the Coripany's agency imventory activites because. $4,057,078 of the
purchase price of agency inventory was provided by sellers per table below.

December 31,.2[}0I

Purchase of insurance agency inventary - . § (3.040,293)
,8ale of insurance agency inventory 5 6,544,571 -
"7 Net cash provided (uzed) from sale of agenc.)r inventary - ° § 3,506,278
" Cash (provided) by sellers of egency inventory 3 (4,057,078
~ {Increase) in inventary.on balance sheet . ¥ (550,800)

17.- Prior Period Adjustment .
. The Campany has recorded priar period adjustments for the ¢

-has revised the initi_al purchase price allacation, for the In
_consideration. '

arrection of errors. Specifically the Company
teratate subsidiary, to delete the_contipgent

“The Company has reclessified, on the Balance §

heets, the loan interest receivable as a component of the
corresponding notes receivable balance., :

The Company has revised the: Statement of Cash Flows t
- .comection with the purchase and sale of
‘transferred in the transactions.

o reflect the actual cash receipts and payments in
insurance agencies, by excluding any liabilities assumed or

The Company has deleted. on the Statements of Income, the ®

participating intersst expense” line item,
because the income should nat report interest income on loans that

the Company does not awn,

Bravke Corporation 2d
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lsmnke Corporuatioy : o

. Subtptalg,

The Company hag adjusted the defe

- The effect of the Prior period adjustment is recapped bé]ovu: :

s E‘rb:ékéﬁ'brpbkﬁi‘fbit{ I
- Notes 1o Consolidated F ineneiol St&zte:fzem.s-:
YEiRs ENDED DECEMBER Eya ..3()0 1 AND 2000
17. "Prior Perjoq Adjustment (cont.)
'T'hc'Campany has reclassified, qn the Statements of Income, the ;'Guins on sale of noteg receivahle" g4
pairment loss" lige items, in order, to be included in- the appropriata Operating income ang ex

pense '

The Company has reclassified, on the ca
receivable" from the

decrease in nateg
ng activity, This
reclassification adjus inated Specifically for resaje.

ed tax asset, income tax expense and income ta
effect of the prior period adjustment,

X benefit for the tax

lEBiIZﬂB! 12312000 | 124317200 127312000
Retafned Retained Met Net
] - Earnlngs Earnings locome | ° jpeome
As praviously reportad 5(2,414,635) 5(3.046,773) . g 64865 § 11.081,298)
Elimination of contingent . .
liability with acquigitian of o T .
‘subsidiary 643 244 500,000 {236,754
“ Priar period adjustments ’

900,000
- effect far deferred tax as3ety (218,704 'f3ﬂﬁ.ﬂb0) - 87,296 {306,000

5 {1.990,093) %{1.452 771y

As adjus-tcd_"

5695408 § (487,208}

12/3!'.’20[}] 1223172000 1273172001 1273124000

Earningy Earnings  pyye, Earn  Dijut £ary

] ) PerShare .. pg, Share  pgr Slm_rt_: Per Shars
. -As Previously reportaq ) LIS 51.5n 1.1 5(1.54)

. Elimination of contingens '
lisbility with acquisition of .
subsidiary {0.37) 130. {0.33) {38
Priar periad ad {Justments
affect for deferreg tax asgets 0.13 (1).44) 0132 {1.43)
— 35
" -As adjusteq — S09 5071y - 30.90 5(0.61

37



C'omolirfai‘eci Finaneigy St‘aremem‘s
I'EAR; ENpep Deceygep 31, 200 AND 2000
18 Prigy Period Adjustment
The Company.has Tevised th itial Purchage [rica aIIocatioﬁ, for the Interstata subsr’diary. 0 dejera th
Contingen; Considerg on, Ag recapped-below. the eliminatigy of the cbnt_ingent consideratign would have th
- foﬂowﬁ]g affect gn the prior Teparted quarter] financig) ; Ormatiop:
03312004 na)safzaui 0973012091, - 03317200, 064307200, 0931209y
Retaineg Retainey Retainey .Neg Net " Net
. o Esrningg Earningg Earningg Income . lncome Income
A‘sprevfuusly reportad - 512.596.023J 5(1414.194) ,s:z.w.mm § 493 459 £ 724733 3949 702
liminution of cantingen; ‘ - .
1ability wig, 8cquisition gf S - ) .
Subsidiary o subeog 900,000 | 643,245 . - (236,754,
_Prior parigg djustmengy o . ’
© affect for d:f:rrgd iax &ssetg ~— (306,000 {306.000) {218,704y - 87295
© Ad djugteg 5 780,244
0361/2001 '06/3!]/2001‘ 09/30/200l ﬂJ/SI/Zﬂ!jl 06/30/200! ﬂW,]O/'.’ﬂﬂl
Earningg EBarningy ‘Barningg Dilut. Bapg Dilut. gapy Dilut. Eapy
‘ R e Per Share PerShare Per Share PerShare Per Shara Per Share
- . Asg Previgug)y Téportaq - 507 51 5133 5070 sLm $127
e Elimination ufcanringcnt : .
lubility wigy equisition of ) . . :
Subsidi " - - .34y - (0.3
Prior perigg edjustments '
- - effecr fiyp deferreq X B3gmts
. Ad adjustag

.10
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